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CORPORATE OFFICE : 98-99, SUB CITY CENTRE, SECTOR 34, CHANDIGARH - 160 022 (INDIA)
Tel : +91-172-2609001, 2609002, FAX : +91-172-2609000
E-mail : info@modernsteels.com, CIN : L27109PB1973PLC003358

Ref: MSL/SECT/BSE/
Date: 17" June, 2016

The Secretary

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001

Tel : 022 — 22721233

SUB: ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16
Dear Sir,

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we are enclosing herewith six copies of
Notice along with the Annual Report as sent to the shareholders for the year
2015-16.

Kindly acknowledge receipt of the same.
Thanking you

Yours truly,
for Modern Steels Limited
)y

(Ashish Sharma)
General Manager (Secretarial)
& Company Secretary

[N

Regd. Office & Works : Post Box No. 12, G.T. Road, Mandi Gobindgarh - 147 301 (Punjab)
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 42™ Annual General
Meeting of the members of Modern Steels Limited will
be held on Saturday, the 9" July, 2016 at 11.00 a.m.
at the Registered Office of the Company at G.T. Road,
Mandi Gobindgarh, Distt. Fatehgarh Sahib, Punjab -
147 301 to transact the following business:-

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1.

To consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet
as at 31% March, 2016, the Statement of Profit &
Loss of the Company for the year ended on that
date and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors
thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. R.K. Sinha (DIN:
00556694), who retires by rotation at this Annual
General Meeting and being eligible has offered
himself for re-appointment.

To ratify the appointment and payment of
remuneration to Statutory Auditors for the financial
year 2016-17 and in this regard to consider and if
thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section
139 and such other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed
thereunder, as amended from time to time and
pursuant to the resolution passed by the members
at the 40" Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on
29" September, 2014 in respect of appointment of
the Statutory Auditors, M/s. Aaryaa & Associates,
Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm's Registration
No. 015935N), till the conclusion of the AGM to be
held in the year 2019, the Company hereby ratifies
and confirms the appointment of M/s. Aaryaa &
Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICAlI Firm's
Registration No. 015935N) as Statutory Auditors of
the Company to hold office from the conclusion of
this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of
the next Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held in the year 2017 to examine and audit
the accounts of the Company for the financial year
2016-17 on such remuneration as may be fixed by
the Board of Directors of the Company.”

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4.

To approve the material related party transactions
with Modern Automotives Limited and in this regard
to consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 188 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made
there under (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force)
and pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23
(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, approval of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board
of Directors, to enter into contracts/arrangements/
transactions with Modern Automotives Limited,
a Related Party under Section 2(76) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 (4) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 related to sale /
purchase of products, goods, materials or services
subject to a maximum aggregate transactions of
A 85 crores in a financial year on such terms and
conditions as may be mutually agreed between
the Company and Modern Automotives Limited, at
arms length basis and at prevailing market prices.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of
Directors / Key Managerial Personnel be and are
hereby authorized to decide upon the nature and
value of the products, goods, materials or services
to be transacted with Modern Automotives Limited,
within the aforesaid limit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of
Directors of the Company and/or a Committee
thereof and/ or Key Managerial Personnel, be and
are hereby, authorized to do or cause to be done all
such acts, matters, deeds and things and to settle
any queries, difficulties, doubts that may arise with
regard to any transaction with the related party
and execute such agreements, documents and
writings and to make such filings, as may be
necessary or desirable for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution, in the best interest of the
Company.”

To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for
the financial year ending 31 March, 2017 and in
this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with
or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 148 and all other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there
under, as amended from time to time and such other
permissions as may be necessary, the Members
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hereby ratify the remuneration of A 70,000/- plus
service tax and out of pocket expenses payable
to M/s. V. Kumar & Associates, Cost Accountants,
who were appointed by the Board of Directors of the
Company to conduct the audit of the Cost records
of the Company for the Financial Year ending
31stMarch, 2017.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors
of the Company be and is hereby authorised
to do all acts and take all such steps as may be
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this
Resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors

Ashish Sharma
GM (Secretarial) &
Company Secretary

Place : Chandigarh
Dated: 28" May, 2016

Registered Office:

G.T. Road, Mandi Gobindgarh,

Distt. Fatehgarh Sahib, Punjab -147 301
CIN: L27109PB1973PLC003358

Email: secretarial@modernsteels.com

NOTES:
1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting (the “Meeting”) is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead
of himself and the proxy need not be a member of
the Company. The instrument appointing the proxy
should, however, be deposited at the registered
office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours
before the commencement of the Meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members
not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights. A member holding
more than ten percent of the total share capital of
the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a
single person as proxy and such person shall not
act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.
Corporate members intending to send their authorised
representatives to attend the Meeting are requested
to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board
Resolution authorising their representative to attend
and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

Details under Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges in
respect of the Director seeking re-appointment

at the Annual General Meeting, is annexed hereto.

10.

A Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special
Business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed
hereto.

Members are requested to bring their attendance
slip along with their copy of Annual Report to the
Meeting.

Members who wish to obtain any information on
the Company or view the Accounts for the financial
year ended 31% March, 2016, may send their
queries at least 10 days before the Annual General
Meeting to the Company Secretary at Company’s
Office at SCO 98-99, Sub-City Centre, Sector 34,
Chandigarh-160 022.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books
of the Company will remain closed from 4™ July,
2016 to 9™ July, 2016 (both days inclusive).
Members holding shares in the dematerialised
mode are requested to intimate all changes with
respect to their addresses, bank details, mandate
etc., to their respective Depository Participant (DP).
These changes will be automatically reflected in
Company'’s records, which will help the Company to
provide efficient and better services to the members.
The Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to intimate immediately change of address,
if any, to the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent.
As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules made thereunder and the Listing
Agreement, the Shareholders can now receive
various notices and documents through electronic
mode by registering their e-mail addresses with the
Company. Shareholders who have not registered
their e-mail address with the Company can now
register the same by submitting duly filled-in
‘E-Communication Registration Form’ attached at
the end of this report (also available on our website
www.modernsteels.com), with MCS Share Transfer
Agent Limited / Investors Service Department of
the Company. The Members holding shares in
electronic form are requested to register their e-mail
addresses with their Depository Participants only.
Even after registering for e-communication the
Shareholders of the Company are entitled to receive
such communication in physical form, upon request.
The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in
securities market. Members holding shares in
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit
their PAN to their Depository Participants with
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

Members holding shares in physical form can
submit their PAN to the Company or M/s. MCS
Share Transfer Agent Limited.

Soft copy of the Annual Report for the financial year
2015-2016 is being sent to all the members, whose
email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository
Participants(s) for communication purposes. For
members who have not registered their email address,
physical copies of the Annual Report for the financial
year 2015-16 is being sent in the permitted mode.
Soft copy of the Notice of the 42" Annual General
Meeting of the Company, inter-alia, indicating the
process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance
Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members
whose email IDs are registered with the Company/
Depository  Participants(s) for communication
purposes unless any member has requested for
a hard copy of the same. For members who have
not registered their email address, physical copies
of the Notice of the 42" Annual General Meeting of
the Company, inter-alia, indicating the process and
manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and
Proxy Form is being sent in the permitted mode.
Members may also note that the Notice of the
42" Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report
for the financial year 2015-16 will also be available
on the Company's website www.modernsteels.
com for their download. For any communication,
the members may also send requests at email ID:
secretarial@modernsteels.com.

Procedure for “Remote E-Voting”

Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
as amended by the Companies (Management
and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and
Regulation 44 of theSEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Company is pleased to provide Members facility to
exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed
to be considered at the 42" Annual General Meeting
(AGM) by electronic means and the business may
be transacted through remote e-voting Services.
The facility of casting the votes by the Members
using an electronic voting system from a place other
than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be
provided by National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL).

The Members who have cast their vote by remote
e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM
but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.
The remote e-voting period commences on
Wednesday, the 6" July, 2016 (9.00 a.m.) and ends
on Friday, the 8" July, 2016 (5.00 p.m.). During this
period Members of the Company, holding shares

either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as
on the cut-off date of 2" July, 2016, may cast their
vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module
shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once
the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, he /
she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

A. In case a Member receives an email from
NSDL:

i)  Openemailand open PDFfile, viz; “Modernsteels
e-Voting.pdf” with your Client ID or Folio No. as
password. The said PDF file contains your user
ID and password for e-voting. Please note that
this password is an initial password.

ii) Launch internet browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com

iii) Click on Shareholder — Login

iv) Put user ID and password as initial password
noted in step (i) above. Click Login.

v) Password change menu appears. Change the
password with new password of your choice
with minimum 8 digits/characters or combination
thereof. Note new password. It is strongly
recommended not to share your password with
any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

vi) Home page of “e-voting” opens. Click on
“e-Voting: Active Voting Cycles”.

vii) Select “EVEN" of Modern Steels Limited.

viii) Now you are ready for “e-voting” as “Cast Vote”
page opens.

ix) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option
and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when
prompted.

X) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast
successfully” will be displayed.

xi) Institutional members (i.e. other than
individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the
relevant Board Resolution/Authority letter, etc.,
together with attested specimen signature of
the duly authorized signatory(ies), who are
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through
e-mail to sharmasarinassociate@yahoo.com
or secretarial@modernsteels.com with a copy
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

xii) Once you have voted on the resolution, you will
not be allowed to modify your vote.

B. In case a Member receives physical copy of
the Notice of AGM:

i) Initial User ID and Password is provided with
the copy of this notice in separate slip.

i) Please follow all steps from SI. No. A(ii) to SI.
No. A(xi) above, to cast vote.
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Ill. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions (FAQs) for Members and
e-voting user manual for Members available at the
Downloads section of www.evoting.nsdl.com

IV. If you are already registered with NSDL for e-voting
then you can use your existing user ID and password
for casting your vote.

V. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail
ID in the user profile details of the folio, which may
be used for sending future communication(s).

VI. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion
to their shares of the paid-up equity share
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e.
2 July, 2016.

VII. Mr. Gurvinder Singh Sarin, MFC, LLB, FCS,
Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.
FCS 4025) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in
a fair and transparent manner.

VIII. The scrutiniser shall, immediately after the conclusion
of voting at the Annual General Meeting, first count
the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the
votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence
of at least two witnesses not in the employment of
the Company and make, not later than three days of
conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated scrutiniser’s
report of the total votes cast in the favour or against,
if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him
in writing who shall countersign the same.

IX. The Chairman or a person authorised by him in
writing shall declare the result of the voting forthwith.
The Results declared alongwith the Scrutinizer’s
Report shall be placed on the Company’s website
www.modernsteels.com and on the website of
NSDL and communicated to the BSE Limited.

15. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice
and the Explanatory Statement shall be open for
inspection, at the Registered Office of the Company,
during normal business hours (9:00 AM to 5:00 PM)
on all working days (except on public holidays), upto
the date of the Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors

Ashish Sharma
GM (Secretarial) &
Company Secretary

Place : Chandigarh
Dated: 28" May, 2016

Registered Office:

G.T. Road, Mandi Gobindgarh,

Distt. Fatehgarh Sahib, Punjab -147 301
CIN: L27109PB1973PLC003358

Email: secretarial@modernsteels.com

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“the Act”)

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating
to the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying
Notice:

ITEM NO. 4

Modern Automotives Limited is a related party within the
meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 23 (4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Audit Committee of Directors and the Board of Directors
of the Company in their meetings held on 28"May, 2016
approved the related party transactions with Modern
Automotives Limited for sale, purchase of goods and to
provide / avail services to / from Modern Automotives
Limited, a related party, subject to a maximum aggregate
transactions of A 85 crores in a financial year. Under
the provisions of Regulation 23 (4) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, a transaction with a related party shall be considered
material if the transaction / transactions to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions
during a financial year, exceeds ten percent of the annual
consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last
audited financial statements of the Company. The clause
further provides that all Material Related Party Transactions
shall require approval of the shareholders through
ordinary resolution. Since the transactions with Modern
Automotives Limited are estimated to be uptoA 85 crores
in a financial year, which exceeds 10% of the annual
consolidated turnover of the Company as per the audited
financial statement as on 31 March, 2016, the transactions
are required to be approved by the shareholders as an
Ordinary Resolution. The said transactions are in the
ordinary course of business of the Company and at arms
length basis.

Other details as required as per the Companies (Meetings
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.

(a) Name of Related Party: Modern Automotives Limited.

(b) Name of Director or Key Managerial Personnel
who is related: Mr. Amarjit Goyal, Chairman &
Whole Time Director and Mr. Krishan Kumar Goyal,
Managing Director of the Company.

(c) Nature of relationship: Related Party.

(d) Material Terms of  contracts/arrangements/
transactions: Sale of finished goods / purchase of
raw material i.e. scrap on arms length basis.

(e) Monetary value: Estimated amount A 85 crores
in a financial year.




NOTICE OF 42N ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

() Any other information relevant or important for
the members to make a decision on proposed
transaction: Nil

The copies of contract setting out the terms and
conditions are available for inspection by members at the
Registered Office of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for
passing the Ordinary Resolution as set out at ltem No.
4 of the Notice.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company / their relatives except Mr. Amarjit Goyal and
Mr. Krishan Kumar Goyal along with their relatives are,in
any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,
in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at
Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders.

ITEM NO. 5

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
has approved the appointment and remuneration of the
Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of
the Company for the financial year ending 31 March,
2017 subject to the ratification of the remuneration payable
to the Cost Auditors by the shareholders of the Company
in accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the

Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for
passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item
No. 5 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending
31 March, 2017.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set
out at Item No. 5 of the Notice.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at
Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders.

By order of the Board of Directors

Ashish Sharma
GM (Secretarial) &
Company Secretary

Place : Chandigarh
Dated: 28" May, 2016

Registered Office:

G.T. Road, Mandi Gobindgarh,

Distt. Fatehgarh Sahib, Punjab -147 301
CIN: L27109PB1973PLC003358

Email: secretarial@modernsteels.com

INFORMATION REGARDING DETAILS OF THE DIRECTOR SEEKING REAPPOINTMENT IN ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING FIXED ON 9™ JULY, 2016 PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 (3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

1. Name of the Director Mr. R.K. Sinha
Date of Birth 18.02.1957
Date of Appointment 28.05.2015

Expertise in specific functional area : Mr. R.K.
Sinha having a vast experience of more than 3
decades in iron and steel manufacturing industry,
worked with Companies like Usha Martin Industries
Limited, Sunflag Iron & Steel Co., in addition
Mr. Sinha has worked with Modern Steels Limited
from July 1998 till May 2007.

Qualification : B.E. (Metallurgy), M.Tech (Ferrous
Metallurgy), PGDBM, besides he has Fellowship in
Management from Management Student Promotion
Institute (MSPI), Delhi.

List of outside Directorships held : Nil

Chairman/Member of the Committee of the Board
of Directors of the Company :

Audit Committee — Member
Stakeholders Relationship Committee — Member
Banking & Finance Committee — Member
Allotment Committee — Chairman

Chairman/Member of the Committee of Directors
of other Companies : Nil

Shareholding in the Company : As on 31% March,
2016, Mr. R.K. Sinha is holding Nil equity shares in
the Company.




MODERN STEELS LIMITED

L]
=4

IVLIdSOH
TAID

[ ]

= 4
ey
< @©
<<
gy
X m
< z
aNvLs NOILVLS B
sng 30110d es Tsn _U
1 \
\ [/ avod 1'9 —_—
HYVOANIg09 ‘N ANIHYIS
> NOYS WME INOY M L
£g
[ WME WML
ez INIOd
o V004
(2]
—
o
-

1T




NOTICE OF 42"° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

MODERN STEELS LIMITED
CIN: L27109PB1973PLC003358
Registered Office: G.T. Road, Mandi Gobindgarh, Distt. Fatehgarh Sahib, Punjab 147301
Email: secretarial@modernsteels.com, Website: www.modernsteels.com
Phone: (0172) 2609001/2, Fax: (0172) 2609000

GREEN INITIATIVE IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Dear Shareholder,
In case you have not registered your email address for receiving communication from Company in electronic mode,
you may submit the Registration Form given herein below to the Share Transfer Agents namely M/s. MCS Share
Transfer Agent Limited, F-65, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-l, New Delhi 110 020 or to the Company at its

office at Modern Steels Limited, S.C.O. 98-99, Sub City Centre, Sector 34, Chandigarh-160 022. Shareholders holding
shares in demat mode are requested to register their email addresses with their Depository Participants.

E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM

(As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and the SEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

FOiONO. /DP ID & CHENtID 1 e
Name of 15t Registered HOIAEr : e et

Name of JOINE HOIAEI(S) : e

Registered Address :

E-mail ID (to be registered) : e
I/we shareholder(s) of Modern Steels Limited agree to receive communication from the Company in electronic mode.
Please register my/our above e-mail id in your records for sending communication through e-mail.

Signature: ......cccceeveevvninnnnn

Date: ....oooeveeiii s

Note : Shareholder(s) are requested to keep the Company / Depository Participant informed as and when there is any
change in the e-mail address.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

MODERN STEELS LIMITED

CIN: L27109PB1973PLC003358
Registered Office: G.T. Road, Mandi Gobindgarh, Distt. Fatehgarh Sahib, Punjab 147301
Email: secretarial@modernsteels.com, Website: www.modernsteels.com
Phone: (0172) 2609001/2, Fax: (0172) 2609000

42"° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Member’s / Proxy’s name in Block Letters

Address

No. of Shares held

| / We hereby record my/our presence at the 42" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Saturday, the
9t July, 2016 at 11 a.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at G.T. Road, Mandi Gobindgarh, Distt. Fatehgarh
Sahib, Punjab 147301.

Member’s Folio / DP ID-Client ID No. Member’s/Proxy’s signatures

Note:

1. Please complete the Attendance Slip and handover at the entrance of the Meeting venue.

2. Soft copy of the Annual Report for FY 2015-16 and the Notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) along
with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members whose email address is registered with
the Depository Participant through email only unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same.
Members receiving soft copy and attending the AGM can print copy of this Attendance Slip.

3. Physical copy of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting along with the Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is sent
in the permitted mode(s) to all members whose email is not registered or who have requested for a hard copy and
copy of the Annual Report for 2015-16 is being sent separately.

4. Shareholders are requested to bring their copy of the Notice alongwith them at the Annual General Meeting as the
copies of the same will not be distributed at the meeting.
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PROXY FORM

Form No. MGT-11
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014]

MODERN STEELS LIMITED
CIN: L27109PB1973PLC003358
Registered Office: G.T. Road, Mandi Gobindgarh, Distt. Fatehgarh Sahib, Punjab 147301
Email: secretarial@modernsteels.com, Website: www.modernsteels.com
Phone: (0172) 2609001/2, Fax: (0172) 2609000

Name of the member(s):

Registered Address:
Email ID:
Folio No./Client ID/DPID:
I/We, being the member(s) of holding shares of above named Company, hereby appoint:-
1.Name: Address:

Email ID: Signature: or failing him/her
2.Name: Address:

Email ID: Signature: or failing him/her
3.Name: Address:

Email ID: Signature:

or my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 42" Annual General Meting of the
Company, to be held on Saturday, the 9" July, 2016at 11:00 a.m at Registered Office: G.T. Road, Mandi Gobindgarh,
Distt. Fatehgarh Sahib, Punjab 147301 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated
below:

Ordinary Business Special Business

1 Adoption of Audited Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2016, 4 Approval of the material related party transactions with
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on that date, and Modern Automotives Limited.
the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon. 5 Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditors for the financial

2 Reappointment of Mr. R. K. Sinha (DIN: 00556694), who year 2016-17.
retires by rotation.

3 Ratification of appointment and remuneration of M/s. Aaryaa
& Associates, Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors.

Affix
revenue

Signed this day of 2016 Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s) stamp
Al

Note:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
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Mr. Krishan Kumar Goyal
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MODERN STEELS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members
Modern Steels Limited

Dear Members,

Your Directors hereby present their 42 ™ Annual Report
and audited accounts of the Company for the year ended
31 March, 2016.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Zin Lacs
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Gross Sales 30270 35660
Excise Duty 3345 3904
Net Sales & Income 26925 31756
from Operations
Operating Profit 1528 1246
Finance Cost 2713 2503
Cash Profit/(Loss) (1185) (1257)
Depreciation & Amortisation 539 583
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (1724) (1840)
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (3357) (1216)
PERFORMANCE

The year under review continued to be challenging, the
Company was able to achieve Gross Sales of ¥ 302.70
Crores as compared to %356.60 Crores in the previous
year. The operating profit of the Company for the year stood

at X15.28 Crores as against ¥12.46 Crores previous year,

The shortage of Working Capital resulted into low capacity
utilization and the lower volumes. The Company was able
to improve Operating Profit because of reduction in the
scrap and other input cost coupled with cost saving drive
undertaken by the Company during the year.

Due to the continuous losses, the deferred assets/liabilities
have been taken as Nil. The Networth of the Company
as on 31* December, 2015 was negative, therefore the
Company made a reference to the Board for Industrial &
Financial Reconstruction under Section 15 of Sick Industrial
Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985.

DIVIDEND

Due to the difficult financial position and the losses suffered
by the Company, the Directors have not recommended any
dividend for the year.

PRODUCT AND MARKET DEVELOPMENT

The initiatives that the Company has undertaken for value
addition is showing positive results and being pursued
further. The Auto Components Division is also catering
to the new component requirements of OEMs.

STATUS OF COMPANY'S ACCOUNTS WITH LENDERS
Members will recall thatin the last fiscal the Company has
submitted its proposal for additional financial assistance to
the lenders. During the year the lenders conducted the
TEV study of the Company and assessed the need based
working capital requirements of the Company. Due to
inadvertent delay in sanctioning financial assistance
by the Lenders, the financial system of the Company got in
difficulties and pushed the Company into difficult position of
NPA.

The Company is in discussions with the Lenders to find out
a workable solution to meet the present financial difficulties
of the Company.

KAIZEN & TS 16949 ACCREDITATION

Your Company’s manufacturing facilities continue to maintain
the prestigious TS 16949 certification by DNV Netherlands, a
leading international Certification Company.

During the year, the Company continued implementation of
Kaizen and 5'S’ projects to come up to the expectations of
major global OEMs.

FIXED DEPOSITS

The outstanding exempted deposits at the end of the year
under review amount 0% 661 Lacs (Previous year ¥ 662
Lacs). There are no overdue deposits.

CORPORATE GOVERNANGE AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSIONS & ANALYSIS

A separate report on Corporate  Governance and
Management Discussions & Analysis is attached herewith
and forms part of this report.

DIRECTORS

Dr. Lalit K Bansal, Independent and Non Executive Director
of the Company resigned from the Board of Directors of the
Companyw.e.f. 13t February, 2016 dueto his preoccupations.
The Board placed on record its appreciations for the services
rendered by Dr. Lalit K Bansal.

Mr. PL. Talwar, Whole Time Director of the Company
resigned from the Board of Directors of the Company w.e.f.
13" February, 2016 due to his preoccupations. The Board
placed on record its appreciations for the services rendered
by Mr. P.L. Talwar,

Mr. RK. Sinha, Director (Operations) shall retire by rotation
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received the necessary declaration from
each Independent Director in accordance with Section 149
(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid out in Sub Section (6) of Section 149
of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015.




BOARD DIVERSITY AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has a policy for formation of the Board o have
Executive Directors and Independent Directors of diverse
packground to maintain the independence of the Board. As
on 315 March, 2016,the Board consists of 7 members,three
are Executive/Whole Time Directors, three Independent
Directors and One Bank Nominee Director.

We affirm that the remuneration paid to the Directors is as
per the terms approved by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

BOARD MEETINGS
During the year, four Board Meetings were convened
and held, the details of which are given in the Corporate
Governance Report.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant of requirements under Section 134(3) (c) of the

CompaniesAct, 2013 with respectto Directors Responsibility

Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

i) in the preparation of the annual financial statements

for the year ended 31 March, 2016, the applicable

accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;
the Directors have selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give

a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company

as at 31% March, 2016 and of the loss of the Company

for the year ended on that date;

iii) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

iv)the Directors have prepared the annual financial

statements for the year ended 31 March, 2016, on a

‘going concern’ basis;

the Directors have laid down internal financial controls

to be followed by the Company and that such internal

financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively;

vi) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

v)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company
with Related Parties have been done at arm’s length and
are in the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014, the particulars of such fransactions are provided
in Form AOC-2 which is annexed herewith as Annexure
“A” {0 this report. Related Party disclosures as per AS-18
have been provided in the Notes to the financial statement.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 is annexed herewith as Annexure “B".

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company recognises that risk is an integral and
unavoidable component of business and is committed to
managing the risk in a proactive and efficient manner.

The Company has formulated Risk Management Policy
to identify and then manage threats/risks that could have
impact on the goals and objectives of the Company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND
THEIR ADEQUACY

MSL has aligned its current systems of internal financial
control with the requirement of Companies Act, 2013.

MSL’s internal controls are commensurate with its size and
nature of its operations. These have been designed to provide
reasonable assurance with regard to recording and providing
reliable financial and operational information, complying with
applicable statues, safeguarding assets from unauthorized
use, executing transactions with proper authorisation and
ensuring compliance of corporate policies.

The management assessed the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Clause 17 of SEBI Regulations 2015) as of
31%March, 2016. The assessment involved self review and
external audit.

Aaryaa & Associates, the Statutory Auditors of MSL has
audited the financial statements including in this annual
report and has issued an attestation report on our internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Section 143).

The Audit Committee reviews reports submitted by the
management and auditreports submitted by internal auditors
and Statutory Auditors. Suggestions for improvement are
considered and the Audit Committee follows up on corrective
action.

Based on its evaluations (as defined in Section 177 of
Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 18 of SEBI Regulations
2015), the Audit Committee has concluded that, as of
31st March, 2016, the internal financial controls were
adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS

At the Annual General Meeting held on 29" September, 2014,
M/s. Aaryaa & Associates, Chartered Accountants, were
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office
il the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting lo be held in
the year 2019. In terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the
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Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of the Auditor shall be
placed for ratification at every Annual General Meeting.

Accordingly, the appointment of M/s. Aaryaa & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the
Company will be placed for ratification by shareholders. In
this regard, the Company has received a Certificate from
the Auditors to the effect that if their appointment is ratified,
it would be in accordance with the provisions of Section 141
of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors have approved the appointment
and remuneration of M/s. V. Kumar & Associates as Cost
Auditors of the Company to conduct the cost audit for
the year 2016-17 on the recommendations of the Audit
Committee subject to the ratification of the remuneration by
the shareholders.

The Board has appointed M/s. Sharma Sarin & Associates,
Company Secretaries, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the
financial year 2015-16. The Secretarial Audit Report in
Form MR-3 for the financial year ended 31% March, 2016 is
annexed herewith as Annexure “C” to this report.

AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditors’
Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further
comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company is having motivated work force. Harmonious
employee relations prevailed throughout the year. Your
Directors place on record their appreciation for all employees
for their hard work and dedication,

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The extract of the Annual Return of the Company in Form
MGT-8 is annexed herewith as Annexure “D” to this report.

PARTICULARS OF
INVESTMENTS
Particulars of Loans, guarantees and investments covered
under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of
the notes to the financial statements provided in the Annual
Report,

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY
AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
There are no adverse material changes or commitments
occurring after 31% March, 2016, which may affect the
financial position of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS
There are no significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern

status and Company’s operations in future.

APPRECIATION
The Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation
of the co-operation received from the Bankers.

The Directors also wish to place on record its appreciation
for the commitment displayed by all employees at ail levels
during the year.

The Directors also take this opportunity to express its
deep gratitude for the continued Co-operation and support
received from its valued stakeholders.

For & on behalf of the Board

Place : Chandigarh
Dated: 28" May, 2016

Amarjit Goyal
Chairman & Whole Time Director

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS

The Company is secondary producer of special and alloy
steel through steel scrap as its main raw material and caters
mainly to Automotives and Engineering sector.

1. Industry’s Structure and Developments
The slow recovery in the domestic economy and the
continuous turmoil in the global market affected the
performance of the steel sector in the country. The high
rate of interest and the continuous liquidity issues have
affected the demand in automobile sector.

The performance of special and alloy steel industry mainly
depends upon demand from Automobile and Engineering
industry and growth in infrastructure  development.
The initiatives taken by the Central Government for
infrastructure development i.e. Ports, Rails & Roads,
Smart Cities etcis expected to improve steel consumption
in the Country. Further the government has given push
to “Make in india” and “Digital India” concept. These
initiatives are giving a flip to increase the demand of steel
in India and it augurs well for the Company.

2. Opportunities & Threats

Key Opportunities include:

- Central Government's push for “Make in India” Drive.

- International Auto Majors are showing keen interest
to expand their base in domestic market for local
consumption.

Key Threats include:

- Pressure of increase of Input Cost particularly imported
metallics, ferro-alloys, refractory etc.

- Being Power Intensive Unit, there has been regutar
increase in power tariffs.

3. Risks and concerns the management perceives
The volatility of the input cost and devaluation of rupee
is the main concern of management. High cost of power
is another area of concern for management.

Internal control system and their adequacy

To provide reasonable assurance that assefs are
safeguarded against loss or damage and that accounting
records are reliable for preparing financial statements,
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aintains a system of accounting and
g an internal audit process. Internal
Management reviews.

management m
controls includin
controls are supported by

The Board of Directors have an Audit Committee that
is chaired by an Independent Director. The committee
meets  periodically with Management, Internal
Auditor, Statutory Auditors to review the Company’s
program of internal controls, audit plans and results,
recommendations of the auditors and management’s
responses to those recommendations.

5. Performance
The year under review continued to be challenging, the
Company was able to achieve Gross Sales of ¥302.70
Crores as compared to I 356.60 Crores in the previous
year. The operating profit of the Company for the year
stood at €15.28 Crores as against Z12.46 Crores previous
year. The shortage of Working Capital resulted into low
capacity utilization and the lower volumes. The Company
was able to improve Operating Profit because of reduction
in the scrap and other input cost coupled with cost saving
drive undertaken by the Company during the year.

Due to the continuous losses, the deferred assets/
liabilities have been taken as Nil. The Networth of the
Company as on 31% December, 2015 was negative, Pla
therefore the Company made a reference to th

e Board for Dated: 28" May, 2016

nancial Reconstruction under section 15 of
Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985.

Industrial & Fi
Sick industrial

Human Resources

Human resources are the most valuable assets of the
Company and the Company recognizes employees’
contributions to the growth of the Company. The Company
is having professionalized and motivated work force.
Company’s manpower was rationalized keeping in view
of less equipment utilization.

. Cautionary statement

The statement in this management discussion and
analysis describing the Company's objectives, projections,
estimates, expectations may be forward looking
statements within the meaning of applicable laws and
regulations. Actual results could differ materially from
those expressed & implied. Important factors that could
make difference to the Company’s decisions include
economic conditions effecting demand & supply and price
conditions in the domestic market.

Eor & on behalf of the Board

ce : Chandigarh Amarjit Goyal

Chairman & Whole Time Director

ANNEXURE <A’ TO DIRECTORS ' REPORT
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub

of the Companies (Accou

Eorm for disclosure of particulars of contracts/ar
with related parties referred to in sub

including certain arms length transacti

1. Details of
- No such contract or arrangement.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arl

-section (1) of secti

-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)

nts) Rules, 2014)

rangements entered into by the Company
on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

ons under third proviso thereto

contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis

m’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

Modern Automotives Limited
Related Party

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
an

Purchase / Sale of scrap, alloy and non-alloy rounds

d machined and auto forged components

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

During the year

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements of Th
transactions including the value, if any:

an

scrap, alloy and non-alloy roun

pusiness at arms length basis.

e Company is engaged in the sale / purchase of
ds and machined

d auto forged components in the normal course of

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: At

quarterly board meetings

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

Place: Chandigarh
Dated: 28" May, 2016

For & on behalf of the Board

Amarjit Goyal
Chairman & Whole Time Director
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Information as per Section 134(3)(m) of the CompaniesAct, 2013 read wit

h rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts)Rules,

2014 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 315t March, 2016.
FORM ‘A’ '
Current Year Previous Year
2015-16 2014-15
A) |Power and Fuel Consumption
1. Electricity
Purchased Units (kwh) 5,81,53,270 6,59,11,135
Total Amount ¥ 41,99,63,880 43,90,77,879
Rate Per unit ¥ 7.22 6.66
2. Fuel
Quantity (Kgs)/kI 17,03,598 13,77,282
Total Amount ¥ 4,97,13,878 5,76,36,957
Rate Per Unit ¥ 29.18 41.84
3. Steam Coal(Gasifire)
Quantity (Kgs) 63,29,321 65,00,715
Total Amount ¥ 6,00,72,237 7,16,62,541
Rate Per Unit ¥ 9.49 11.02
B) | Consumption Per Unit of Production
1. Production (Concast Billets) MT 43,671 43,845
a. Electricity Units 804 820
b. Furnace Oil (Kgs) 21 22
2. Production (Ingots) MT 13,625 24,314
a. Electricity Units 663 713
b. Furnace Oil (Kgs) 3.00 3.07
Production (Rolled Products with O MT 6,499 3,500
Production (Rolled Products with Coal) MT 42,530 48,528
a. Electricity Units 86 94
__b. Steam Coal(Kgs)-Gasifire 149 125
¢. Furnace Oil (Kgs) 41 39
FORM ‘B’

1. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
During the current Financial Year 2015-16, the Company has
improvement and significant cost saving measures. These are as

Research & Development

1. The usage of blocking concept in the oxidizing condition has been totally stopped.

2. Aconcept of (-)ve strip time got introduced in CCM, significantly improving the surface condition of Blooms.

3. In order to increase the size range 14mm Dia rolling introduced improving from 18mm. This was done for catering to
OEM’s requirements.

4. Centerless Grinding in Bright Bar was introduced for 12.4 Dia.

under gone Process Oriented R&D towards efficiency
follows:-

Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation
a) Injection Practice in EAF got optimized.

b) Sequence Casting Practice got re
¢} Because of better monitoring and
d) Switching over to LDO instead of

-started after a gap of three years rendering significant cost saving.
optimization, there is a significant improvement in the Refractory Life.
Diesel has also given significant cost saving.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

Particulars with regard to Foreign Exchange earning and outgo appear on the relevant note of the Balance Sheet.

Place : Chandigarh
Dated : 28" May, 2016

For & on behaif of the Board

Amarjit Goyal
Chairman & Whole Time Director
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ANNEXURE ‘C’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2016

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
MODERN STEELS LTD.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the
Compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by MODERN
STEELS LTD. Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis
for evaluating the Corporate conducts/Statutory
Compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the MODERN STEELS
LTD., Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company
and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, We hereby
report that in our opinion, the, Company has, during
the Audit period covering the Financial Year ended on
31stMarch, 2016 complied with the Statutory Provisions
Listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and Compliance-Mechanism
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
Reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers and minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by MODERN STEELS LTD. for the
Financial Year ended on 31 March, 2016, according
to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder;

The Securities Contracts {(Regulation) Act, 1956
("SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

(i)

(iv)

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; '

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992 and Regulations 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of india
{(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e) The Securites and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

(fy The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

(9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009,
and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(vi) As per the representations made by the Company
no other laws are specifically applicable to the
Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable

clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Listing Agreement/SEB! (Listing Obligation and

Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 entered

into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s), if

applicable;

During the period under review the Company has

complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned

above subject to the following observations:

a. Company has not filed MGT 10 for disclosure
u/s 93 read with Companies (Management and
Administrative ) Rules , 2014 with a view that
the change in the shareholding is less than 2%

of the total share capital of the Company.

b. As per the representation made by the
Company appointment of CFO under section
203 of the Companies Act, 2013 is under
process.
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We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.
The changes in the Composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to Schedule
the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed notes on
Agenda were sent at least seven days in advance,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the Agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

All decisions at the Board Meeting and Committee
Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or
Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
Compliance with Applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations
and Guidelines.

for Sharma Sarin & Associates

GS Sarin, Partner
CP No: 2751
FCS No: 4025

Place: Chandigarh
Date: 28" May, 2016

4. Wherever

The Secretarial Audit Report is to be read with our
letter of even date which is annexed
as Annexure A and Forms an integral part of this
report.

‘Annexure A’
To,
The Members
Modern Steels Ltd.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this

letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the
responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process

as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. The verification was done on
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected
in secretarial records. We belicve that the process
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness  and
appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

required, we have obtained the
Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management.
Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

for Sharma Sarin & Associates

GS Sarin, Partner
CP No: 2751
FCS No: 4025

Place: Chandigarh
Date: 28" May, 2016
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ANNEXURE ‘D’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31t March, 2016
(Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

l. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN 1.27109PB1973PLC003358
ii) Registration Date 19" November, 1973
iii) Name of the Company Modern Steels Limited

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Limited Listed Company

v) Address of the Registered office GT Road, Mandi Gobindgarh, Distt Fatehgarh Sahib, Punjab § 147301,
and contact details Tel: 01765-257991

vi) Whether listed Company Yes / No Yes

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of M/s. MCS Share Transfer Agent Ltd., F-65, 1% Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any Phase-|, New Delhi 110 020, Tel.No. : +91-11- 41406149,

Fax No.: +91-11- 41709881, E-mail : admin@mcsdel.com,
Website : www.mcsdel.com

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the Business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

Sr. No. | Name and Description of main products NIC Code of the Product % to total turnover of the Company
1 Alloy Bars / Rounds 7228 67%
2 Non Allloy Bars / Rounds 7214 15%
3. Auto Components 8714 14%

IIl. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES - NIL

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of total Equity)
i} Category-wise Shareholding

Category of Shareholders No. of shares held at the beginning | No. of shares held at the end of the |% change
of the year (as on 1 April, 2015) year (as on 31t March, 2016) during

Demat |Physical] Total | % | Demat |Physical| Total v, | the year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual /HUF 6885859 -| 6885859|50.03} 6885859 -] 6885859 50.03 0.00
d) Bodies Corp. 2133077 -l 2133077|15.50] 2133077 -| 2133077} 15.50 0.00
Sub Total (A):- 9018936 - 9018936|65.53| 2018936 -l 9018936| 65.53 0.00
Total shareholding of Promoter (A) 9018936 - 9018936(65.53| 9018936 - 9018936 65.53 0.00

B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 3600] 2400 6000 0.04] 3600 2400 6000 0.04 0.00
b) Banks / FI {1 1000  1000] 0.01 1 1000 1000| 0.01 0.00
Sub Total (B)(1):- 3600  3400{ 7000 0.05]  3600] 3400  7000| 0.05 0.00

2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corporate
i) Indian 278219 43600 321819} 2.34) 182910; 43600 226510{ 1.65 -0.69
b) Individuals
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i) Individual shareholders holding nominal | 1714990 834105, 2549095/18.52 2074469 815705/ 2890174 21.00 248
share capital up to Rs 1 lakh
if) Individual shareholders holding nominal| 1808671 21000 1829671/13.29 1557669 21000 1578669| 11.47 -1.82
share capital in excess of ¥ 1 lakh.
c) Others (Specify)
Non Resident Indians 35838 - 35838! 0.26 41070 - 41070; 0.30 0.04
Sub Total (B)(2):- 3837718| 898705 4736423 34.42) 3856118 880305 4736423|34.42 0.00
Total Public Shareholding 3841318 902105/ 4743423(34.47 3859718| 883705| 4743423|34.47 0.00
(B) = (B)(1) + (B) (2)
C. Shares held by custodian for - - - - - - - - 0.00
CDRs and ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 12860254 902105]13762359] 100 12878654 883705)13762359] 100 0.00
(i) Shareholding of Promoters
Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the % change in
year (as on 1 April, 2015) year (as on 31 March, 201 6) shareholding
No.of | % oftotal | % of shares | No. of |% of total % of shares | during the
shares shares pledged / shares | shares pledged / year
of the encumbered to of the | encumbered
Company | total shares Company|to total shares|
1. Krishan Kumar Goyal 2496179 18.14 17.41% 2496179} 18.14 18.14% 0.00
2. Amarjit Goyal ) 1189250 8.64 7.99% 1189250{ 8.64 8.64% 0.00
3. Alka Goyal 1488840 10.82 10.82% 1488840 10.82 10.82% 0.00
4. Nabha Commerce Pvt Ltd. 837750 6.09 6.09% 837750; 6.09 6.09% 0.00
5. Aditya Goyal 795590 5.78 5.78% 795590{ 5.78 5.78% 0.00
6. Chandigarh Finance Pvt Ltd 380625 2.77 2.77% 380625 2.77 2.77% 0.00
7. Krishan Kumar Goyal (HUF) 546000 3.97 2.51% 546000] 3.97 3.97% 0.00
8. Amarjit Goyal (HUF) 370000 2.69 1.96% 370000] 2.69 2.69% 0.00
9. Times Finvest & Commerce Limited 234702 1.71 1.71% 2347021 1.71 1.71% 0.00
10. Indo Pacific Finlease Limited 680000 4.94 0.00% 680000{ 4.94 4.94% 0.00
Total 9018936 65.53 57.03% 9018936| 65.53 65.53% 0.00
(i Change in Promoters Shareholding {please specify if there is any change)
There is no change in the Promoter's shareholding during the year.
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Name of the shareholder Shareholding at the Purchase Sale during | Cumulative shareholding at
beginning of the year during the the year the end of the year
{as on 1= April, 2015) year
No. of % of total | No. of shares | No. of shares | No. of shares % of total
shares | shares of the shares of the
Company Company
1. Ajay Goyal 469135 3.41 - - 469135 3.41
2. Veenu Garg 366707 2.66 - - 366707 2.66
3. Laven Kumar Goyal 195672 1.42 - - 195672 1.42
4. Vijay Garg 187921 1.37 - - 187921 1.37
5. Shri Parasram Holdings P Ltd. 48439 0.35 500 - 48939 0.36
6. Ajay Goyal 45000 0.33 - - 45000 0.33
7. LSE Securities Limited 44841 0.33 1273 12663 33451 0.24
8. Kamal Leasing Limited 40750 0.30 - - 40750 0.30
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9. Vaneet Kumar Gupta 39875 0.29 - 4240 35635 0.26
10. Nipa C Ambani 30220 0.22 - - 30220 0.22
{v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Name of the shareholder Shareholding at the Purchase Sale during | Cumulative shareholding at
beginning of the year during the the year the end of the year
(as on 1¢t April, 2015) year
No. of % of total | No. of shares | No. of shares| No. of shares % of total
shares |shares of the " Ishares of the
Company Company
1. Mr. Amarjit Goyal 1189250 8.64 - - 1189250 8.64
2. Mr. Krishan Kumar Goyal 2496179 18.14 - - 2496179 18.14
3. Mr. D.S. Gill 500 0.00 - - 500 0.00
4. Mr. Priyavrat Thareja 250 0.00 - - 250 0.00
No other Director / KMP / Company Secretary is holding any shares in the Company during the year.
V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans Working Capital | Unsecured | Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans Loans - Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year (as on 1='April, 2015)
i) Principal Amount 89,67,80,798 77,48,49,481 | 6,62,43,182 - 1,73,78,73,461
i} Interest due but not paid 1,76,78,510 - - 1,76,78,510
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 91,44,59,308 77.48,49,481 | 6,62,43,182 - 1,75,55,51,971
Change in indebtedness during the financial year
— Addition - 20,55,53,555 | 3,09,79,254 - 23,65,32,809
— Reduction 8,99,39,764 - 3,11,53,089 - 12,10,92,853
Net change (8,99,39,764) 20,55,53,555 (1,73,835) - 11,54,39,956
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year (as on 31% March, 2016)
i) Principal Amount 80,68,41,034 98,04,03,036 | 6,60,69,347 - 1,85,33,13,417
i} Interest due but not paid 3,62,00,236 - - - 3,62,00,236
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 84,30,41,270 98,04,03,036 | 6,60,69,347 - 1,88,95,13,653

VI.REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personel appears in the Corporate Governance Report.

VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Place: Chandigarh
Dated: 28" May, 2016

Nil

For & on behalf of the Board

Amarjit Goyal

Chairman & Whole Time Director
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ODERN STEELS LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In line with the requirement for providing a
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015
Company’s Corporate Governance norms.,

‘Report on Corporate Governance”
of the Stock Exchanges as applica

as per SEBI (Listing Obligation and
ble, given below is a report on the

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE
Modern Steels Limited is committed in adopting the best practices of Corporate Governance. The Company
endeavours to act on the principles of transparency, accountability, trusteeship, integrity and passion. The ultimate
objective being of realizing long term shareholder value, while taking into account the interest of other stakeholders.
2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
A. Composition and category of the Board of Directors
Alist of Directors including the Chairman of the Board and their status as Executive / Non-Executive and Independent/
Non-Independent during the year ended 31t March, 2016 is set out below:- »
Name of the Category of the No. of | LastAGM | No. of other | No. of Committee Relationship
Director Director Board | attended Directorships positions held between directors
meetings in Public - inter se
attended Company Chairman | Member
Mr. Amarijit Chairman & Whole 3 Yes - - - Father of
Goyal Time Director Mr. Krishan
Executive - Non Kumar Goyal
Independent Director
Mr. Krishan Managing Director 4 Yes 3 - - Son of
Kumar Goyal Executive - Non Mr. Amarjit Goyal
Independent Director
Mr.D.S. Gilt Non-Executive - 4 Yes - 2 - NA
Independent Director
Prof. Priyavrat | Non-Executive - 4 Yes - - 2 NA
Thareja Independent Director
Dr. Lalit Kumar | Non-Executive - 3 Yes - - - NA
Bansal* Independent Director
Dr. Meena Non-Executive - 3 Yes NA
Sharma#* Independent Director
Mr.D. K. Non-Executive - 4 No - - - NA
Gupta Nominee Director
Mr. R.K. Sinha | Director (Operations) 4 Yes - - 2 NA
Executive -~ Non
Independent Director
Mr. P.L. Whotle Time Director 2 Yes - - - NA
Talwar@ Executive ~ Non
Independent Director

Disclosure of Change :-

# Dr. Meena Sharma is appointed as Additional Director {Non Executive Independent Woman Director) of the Company by
the Board of Directors w.e.f. 16 July, 2015, who was regularized in the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on 26" September, 2015.

Dr. Lalit K. Bansal, Independent Director resigned from Directorship w.e.f 13® February, 2016.

@ Mr. P.L. Talwar, Whole Time Director resigned as Whole Time Director w.e.f 13t February, 2016.

Note: In accordance with provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulatipns: 2915 membe,rsﬁip
/ chairmanship of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee in all Public Limited Companies
(listed / unlisted) have been considered.

A
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B. Board Meeting and Attendance ‘
During the financial year ended 31¢ March, 2016, four meetings of Board of Directors were held. The details of Board
Meetings held during the year are as under:-

Date of Board Meeting Board’s Strength No. of Directors Present
28" May, 2015 8 ‘ 8
10" August, 2015 9 7
7" November, 2015 9 9
13" February, 2016 7 7

Mr. D.S. Gill is holding 500 equity shares in the Company and Prof. Priyavrat Thareja is holding 250 equity shares in
the Company. No other Non-Executive Director is holding any shares in the Company.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

a. Terms of reference of Audit Committee

The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

To oversee the vigil mechanism as per section 177 of the companies Act, 2013.

0. The Audit Committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of
audit, including the observations of the auditors and review of financial statement before their submission to the
Board and may also discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the management
of the Company. .

11. The Audit Committee shall have authority to investigate into any matter in relation to the items specified in sub-
section (4) or referred to it by the Board and for this purpose shall have power to obtain professional advice
from external sources and have full access to information contained in the records of the Company.

12. The auditors of a Company and the key managerial personnel shall have a right to be heard in the meetings
of the Audit Committee when it considers the auditor’s report but shali not have the right to vote.

20N R N~

b. Composition of Audit Committee
1. The Company has an Audit Commitiee as per provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. D.S. Gill, Prof.
Priyavrat Thareja and Mr. R.K. Sinha are the members of the Committee.
2. The Chairperson of the Audit Committee, Mr. D.S. Gill is a Non Executive Independent Director.
¢. Meetings and attendance of Audit Committee
The Committee met four times during the year on 28" May, 2015, 10" August, 2015, 7" November, 2015 and
13t February 2016. The status of attendance of members at the Audit Committee meetings was as under:-

Name of Director No. of Meetings attended during 2015-16
Mr. D.S. Gill 4
Prof. Priyavrat<Thareja 4
Mr. R.K. Sinha* 3
Mr. P.L. Talwar® 1
Dr. Lalit K Bansal*™ 3

* Mr. R.K. Sinha joined Audit Committee in place of Mr. P.L. Talwar w.e.f. 28‘“ May, 2015.
**Dr. Lalit K Bansal ceased to be the member of the Committee w.e.f. 13" February, 2016.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee as per Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
a. The terms of reference of the Committee are as follows-

1. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall identify persons who are qualified to become directors
and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to
the Board their appointment and removal and shalt carry out evaluation of every director's performance.

2. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

3. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, while formulating the policy ensure that—

(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

(¢) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of
the Company and its goals.’

4. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

5. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

b. Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as under:

Name of Director Category of the Director Member / Chairman
Prof. Priyavrat Thareja Non Executive Independent Chairman
Mr. D.S. Gill Non Executive independent Member
Dr Meena Sharma Non Executive Independent Member

c. During the year, one meeting of the Committee was held on 28" May, 2015.

d. Performance evaluation criteria: The Company has a policy for formation of the Board to have Executive Directors
and Independent Directors of diverse background to maintain the independence of the Board. As on 31t March,
2016, the Board consists of members, three are Executive / Whole Time Directors, three independent Directors
and One Bank Nominee Director. The Board of Directors does the performance evaluation of Directors at the time
of fixing the remuneration of Executive Directors and sitting fee of Independent Director.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Executive Direclors are paid remuneration as per the terms approved by the Board of Directors and confirmed by
the shareholders of the Company and in confirmation with the approval of Central Government wherever necessary.
Service contracts are entered into in ters of regulations governing their appointment and terms of remuneration. The
remuneration is fixed considering various factors such as qualification, experience, expertise, prevailing remuneration
in the competitive industries, financial position of the Company etc. The remuneration structure comprises Basic
Salary, Perquisites and allowances, contribution to Provident Fund and other funds in accordance with various
related provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fee of 20,000 per
Board Meeting and X 10,000 for Committee Meetings held by them.

Details of Remuneration paid to the Directors during the financial year ended 31 March, 2016 Amount in ¥

Name of the Director Salary Benefits | Perquisites | Stock Option | Sitting Fee Total

Mr. Amarijit Goyal 24.00,000 - 3,09,600 - . - 27,09,600
Mr. Krishan Kumar Goyal | 30,00,000 - 8,04,684 - - 38,04,684
Mr. D.S. Gill - - - - 1,70,000 1,70,000
Prof. Privavrat Thareja - - - - 1,20,000 1,20,000
Dr. Lalit Kumar Bansal* - - - - 1,10,000 1,10,000
Dr. Meena Sharma - - - - 60,000 60,000
Mr. D. K. Gupta™ - - - - 1,60,000 1,60,000
Mr. R.K. Sinha 20,25,806 - 188,550 - - 22,14,356
Mr. P.L. Talwar* 15,67,241 - 149,358 - - 17,16,599

* Dr. Lalit K. Bansal, Independent Director and Mr. P.L. Talwar, Whole Time Director resigned from Directorships w.e.f
13" February, 2016. i

**The sitting fee of Mr. D.K. Gupta, Nominee Director has been revised from ¥ 10,000 to ¥ 40,000 for every Board
meeting vide e-circular of State Bank of India dated 6th April, 2015, whereby the sitting fee for the Nominee
Directors is fixed @ ¥ 40,000 for each Board Meeting.
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STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Company has formed a Stakeholders Relationship Committee which looks into the redressing of shareholders

and investors complaints like transfer of shares, non receipt of balance sheet, change of address etc.

a. The Chairman of the Committee Mr. D.S. Gill is a Non-Executive independent Director nominated by the Board.

b. Mr. Ashish Sharma, GM (Secretarial) & Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company.

¢. During the year 2015-2016, the Company has received 7 Shareholder Complaints & 7 Complaints are resolved
to the satisfaction of Shareholders & no complaint is pending.

SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE
For the expeditious disposal of the share transfer and allied services, Company has formed a Share Transfer
Committee to look into and decide matters pertaining to share allotment, transfer, duplicate share certificates and

related matters.

BANKING & FINANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has formed a Banking & Finance Committee under the Chairmanship of a Mr. D.S. Gill. Mr. RK. Sinha
and Prof. Priyavrat Thareja are the members of the Committee.

The Commitiee oversees the Company's banking operations and borrowing from banks and financial institutions and
allied matters, which otherwise require the consent of Board of Directors.

During the year, one meeting of the Committee was held on 7* November, 2015.

ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE
The Company has formed an Allotment Committee under the Chairmanship of Mr. R. K. Sinha, an Executive Director.

The list of present members and the chairman of the Committee is as folloWs:

Name of Director Member / Chairman
Mr. R.K. Sinha Chairman

Mr. D.S. Gill Member

Dr. Meena Sharma Member

The Committee approves the allotment of Securities i.e Shares / Debentures / Warrants etc. from time to time. During
the year, no meeting of the Committee was held.

10. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

1.

Financial Year | Location Date Time
2012-13 Regd Office: G.T. Road, Mandi Gobindgarh (Pb) 11.09.2013 11.00 a.m.
2013-14 Regd Office: G.T. Road, Mandi Gobindgarh (Pb) 29.09.2014 11.00 a.m.
2014-15 Regd Office: G.T. Road, Mandi Gobindgarh (Pb) 26.09.2015 11.00 a.m.

Special Resolutions passed in previous three AGMs:

(i) In the 39" AGM dated 11.09.2013 the following Special resolutions were passed:

a) Re-appointment and remuneration of Mr. Amarjit Goyal as Whole Time Director of the Company.

b) Issuance of 11,70,000 warrants @ X 100/- per warrant, convertible into equal number of equity shares of ¥10/-
each to be issued at a premium of ¥90/- to Promoter & Promoter group/investor on preferential basis.

(ii) In the 40" AGM dated 29.09.2014 the following Special resolutions were passed:

a) Appointment of Mr. Amarjit Goyal (DIN: 00219943) as Chairman & Whole Time Director of the Company.

b) Appointment of Mr. Krishan Kumar Goyal (DIN: 00482035) as Managing Director & CEO of the Company.

¢) Appointment of Mr. P.L. Talwar (DIN: 02358518) as a Whole Time Director of the Company.

d) Approval under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding borrowing powers to the Board of
Directors.

e) Approval under Section 180 (1) (a) of the Companies Act 2013 for mortgaging and/or charging, the whole or
substantially the whole of the Company’s undertakings in favour of the Lenders, Financial Institutions, Banks,
Agents and/or Trustees efc.

f) Approval under section 186 regarding powers to the Board of Directors to invest.

(iii) In the 41t AGM dated 26.09.2015 the following Special resolutions were passed:
a) Appointment of Mr. R.K. Sinha (DIN: 00556694) as Director (Operations) of the Company.
b) Approval of material related party transactions with Modern Automotives Limited.

During the year the Company passed no resolution through postal ballot.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Quarterly results: The quarterly /Half yearly/ Yearly results of the Company, Notice of Board Meeting and information
relating to Annual General Meeting, Book Closures is published in The Financial World / The Financial Express and
Punjabi Tribune / Rozana Spokesman i.e in English and regional language newspaper and is also notified to the
Stock Exchange as required under the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015.
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In addition, the Company also files quarterly results, Shareholding Pattern etc. in such form so as to enable Stock
Exchange to put it on their website.

Website: www.modernsteels.com

Annual Report The Annual Report containing Audited Financial Statement, Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report,
Corporate Governance Report is circulated to the members by email or by post.

BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the ‘Listing Centre‘): BSE’s Listing Centre is a web-based
application designed for corporates. All periodical compliance filings like shareholding pattern, corporate governance
report, media releases, among others are also filed electronically on the Listing Centre.

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): The investor complaints are processed in a centralised web-based
complaints redress system. The salient features of this system are: Centralised database of all complaints, online
upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on
the complaint and its current status.

Designated email-id: The Company has designated following email 1D exclusively for Investor Servicing:
secretarial@modernsteels.com

Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of the Annual Report, which is posted to the shareholders.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting:

Day, Date & Time : Saturday, the g July, 2016 at 11.00 a.m.
Venue : G.T. Road, Mandi Gobindgarh, Distt. Fatehgarh Sahib, Punjab 147 301
Financial Calendar for:

Adoption of Results for the quarter ended:- In the Month of {tentative)
30" June, 2016 August, 2016 (2™ week)
30" Septermnber, 2016 November, 2016 (2™ week)
31 December, 2016 February, 2017 (2™ Week)
31 March, 2017 By May, 2017

Annual General Meeting By September, 2017

Book Closure Date:

From 4% July, 2016 to 9* July, 2016 (both days inclusive)
Listing on Stock Exchanges:

Your Company is listed at the BSE Limited (BSE).

Stock Code:
BSE: 513303
ISIN No. in NSDL & CDSL: INEOO1F01019
Stock Data:

Month MODERN STEELS LTD. ON BSE BSE SENSEX

Hight | LowZ | Closex | Volume High | Low | Close

2015
April 10.25 8.12 9.83 16959 29094.61 26897.54 [ 27011.31
May 9.84 8.50 8.78 16541 28071.16 | 26423.99 | 27828.44
June 9.22 7.57 8.47 22371 27968.75 | 26307.07 | 27780.83
July 8.99 7.31 8.29 29548 28578.33 | 27416.39 | 28114.56
August 9.80 7.80 8.44 25331 2841759 | 2529842 | 26283.00
September 8.95 - 8.00 8.40 7463 26471.82 | 24833.54 | 26154.83
October 8.94 8.30 8.54 16501 27618.14 | 26168.71 | 26656.83
November 9.10 8.07 8.70 20521 26824.30 | 2545142 | 2614567
December 9.35 8.00 8.55 26873 26256.42 | 24867.73 | 26117.54
2016
January 9.59 7.30 7.60 20020 26197.27 | 23839.76 | 24870.69
February 7.75 6.02 8.30 9738 25002.32 | 2249461 | 23002.00
March 6.65 5.65 6.10 7815 25479.62 | 23133.18 | 25341.86

Registrars and Share Transfer Agents (For Physical as well as for Demat Segment):
M/s. MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited

F- 65, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area Phase-I, New Delhi - 110 020.

Tel.No. : +81-11- 41406149 , Fax No.: +91-11- 41709881,

E-mail : admin@mcsdel.com, Website: www.mcsdel.com.
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All sharehoiders of the Company can avail online services from our Registrars & Share Transfer Agents M/s. MCS
Share Transfer Agent Limited, with regard to Investor Grievances. Please login on the site of M/s. MCS Share
Transfer Agent Limited at www.mcsdel.com and click on Investors Services and you can register your queries/
grievances and details as required by you. The registered queries/grievances on the site will be responded by M/s.
MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited on priority basis.

Share transfer System:

93.58% of the equity shares of the Company are in the electronic form. Transfer of these shares are done through
the depositories with no involvement of the Company. As regards transfer of shares held in physical form the transfer
documents can be lodged with M/s. MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited or with Company at their mentioned
addresses.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31t March, 2016:

SHAREHOLDING SHAREHOLDERS NO. OF SHARES
From To Number % of total Number % of total
Upto 5000 6,015 87.53 13,61,253 9.88
5001 10000 422 6.14 342,177 2.49
10001 20000 . 225 3.27 3,28,245 2.39
20001 30000 60 0.87 1,50,340 1.09
30001 40000 31 0.45 1,10,608 0.80
40001 50000 16 0.23 72,300 0.53
50001 100000 46 0.67 3,25,695 2.37
100001 And above 58 0.84 1,10,71,741 80.45
‘TOTAL 6,873 100.00 1,37,62,359 100.00
Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on 31t March, 2016:
Category No. of shares held %age of shareholding
Promoters & Promoter Group 90,18,936 65.53
Mutual Funds & Banks : 7,000 0.05
Bodies Corporate 2,26,510 1.65
Indian Public 44,68,843 32.47
NRIs/OCBs 41,070 0.30
TOTAL 1,37,62,359 100.00

10. Dematerialisation of Shares:

.

12.

The trading in Company'’s shares is permitted only in dematerialised form. In order to enable the shareholders to hold
their shares in electronic form and to facilitate scripless trading, the Company has enlisted its shares with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

Share Dematerialisation record: The following data indicates the extent of Dematerialization of Company’s shares
as on 31 March, 2016

No. of Shares : 1,28,78,654 93.58 % of the total equity.

Plant Location of the Company:
Registered Office & Works: G.T. Road, Mandi Gobindgarh, Distt. Fatehgarh Sahib, Punjab — 147 301
Correspondence Address:

All queries of investors regarding the Company’s shares in Physical / D'mat form may be sent at the foliowing
addresses: ‘

i) Modern Steels Limited

Corporate Office: SCO 98-99, Sub City Centre, Sector 34, Chandigarh-160022

Tel.: +91-172- 2609001, 2609002, 2609003, Fax.: +91-172- 2609000

E-mail:secretarial@modernsteels.com, Company’s Website: www.modernsteels.com
ii} M/s. MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited

F- 65, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area Phase-I, New Delhi 110 020.

Tel.No. : +91-11- 41406149 , Fax No.: +31-11- 41709881,

E-mail : admin@mcsdel.com, Website: www.mcsdel.com
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13. Other Disclosures:

a) Disclosure on materially significant related party transactions:
All material transactions with related parties as defined under the Act and Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 during the financial year were in the ordinary course
of business. They have been approved by the Audit Committee & Board of Directors as applicable.

b) Details of non compliance by listed Company, penalties: Nil

c) Detail of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy:
The Company has established a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism
as defined under Regulation 22 of SEB! (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

for Directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behavior. No person is denied access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee,

d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements:

The Company is complying with all the mandatory requirements as given by Stock Exchange / Registrar of
Companies.

e) The Company is not having any subsidiary, therefore no policy for determining material subsidiaries.

Declaration regarding compliance by Board members and Senior management personnel with the Company’s
code of conduct.

The Shareholders,

I, Krishan Kumar Goyal, Managing Director of the Company do hereby declare that all the Board members and Senior
Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the Board of Directors, as
applicable to the Board of Directors and Senior Management of the Company.

Sd/-
Place : Chandigarh Krishan Kumar Goyal
Dated : 28" May, 2016 Managing Director

AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UNDER
SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To,
The Members
Modern Steels Limited

We have examined the compliance of Corporate Governance by Modern Steels Limited for the year ended 31% March,
2016, as stipulated in the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the said Company
with Stock Exchange. The compliance of conditions of the Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management.
Our examination has been limited to the review of the procedures and implementations thereof adopted by the Company
for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the certificate of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said clause. it
is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representations
made by the Directors and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

As required by the guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, we have to state that no
investor complaint is pending for a period exceeding one month as on 31% March, 2016 against the Company, as per
records maintained by the Investor Grievance Committee of the Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Sharma Sarin & Associates
Company Secretaries

P.D. SHARMA
Place : Chandigarh Partner
Date: 28" May, 2016 C.P. No. 2692
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To

The Members of Modern Steels Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial
statements of Modern Steels Limited, which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315 March, 2016,
the Statement of Profit and Loss ‘and Cash Flow
Statement for the year ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation and
presentation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
standalone financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act,
the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain

audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company's preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on whether the Company has in place
an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness
of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information

and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid financial statements give the information

required by the Act in the manner so required and give

a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting

principles generally accepted in India:

(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31t March, 2016;

(b) In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss,
of the loss of the Company for the year ended on
that date; and

(c) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the
cash flows of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)

Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report

that:

a. We have obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our
audit;
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. In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as appears from our examination of those
books.

. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by

this Report are in agreement with the books of

account,

In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement

of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement

comply with Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7, The

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

. On the basis of the written representations
received from the Directors as on 31 March,
2018, taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the Directors is disqualified as on
31 March, 2016, from being appointed as a
Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
with respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements

ii. The Company has made provision, as required
under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if
any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts

ii. There has been no delay in transferring

amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

For Aaryaa & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0015935N

Krishan Joshi
Place: Chandigarh Partner
Dated: 28* May, 2016 M. No. 094478

ANNEXURE 1 TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members
of the Company for the year ended 31% March, 2016. To
the best of our knowledge and belief and information &
explanation given to us, we further report that:-

1. a) The Company has maintained proper records to

show full particulars including quantitative details
& situation of its fixed assets.

b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have
been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals which in our opinion
is appropriate having regards to size of the
Company and nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies have been noticed during the year.

¢} The title deeds of immovable properties are held
in the name of the Company.

- a) The inventory of the Company has been

physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals during the year.

b) No material discrepancies were noticed.

- The Company has granted loans, secured or

unsecured to Companies, Firms or other parties

covered in the Register maintained under Section 189

of the Companies Act, 2013. The same is mentioned

herein as per the information and explanation given
to us by the management. ‘

a) The Company has granted unsecured loan
to Modern Automotive Limited during the year.
The maximum amount involved during the
year is X 1.86 crores &year end outstanding is
¥ 1.86 crores.

b} The rate of interest and other term & conditions
of the above loan is, in our opinion, not prima
facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

c¢) The receipts of principal amounts and interest
have been regular as per stipulations.

d} There was no overdue amount,

In respect of loans, investments, guarantee and

security the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

- The Company has accepted deposits from directors

amount ¥ 2.88 crores as well as from corporate bodies
amounting to 33.73 crores. As per CDR report, the
amount of ¥ 3.50 crores need to be infused &%2.38
crores needed to be retained separately in form of
unsecured loans by the Company. The Company has
complied with the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India & with the provisions of Section 73 to
76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed
there under with regard to the deposits accepted
from the public. No order has been passed by the
Company Law Board or National Company Law
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any
other Tribunal.

- On the basis of records produced to us, we are of the

opinion that prima facie the cost records prescribed by
the Central Government of India under section 148(1)
of the Act have been made & maintained & also cost
audit will be conducted in due course of time. We
have not carried out any detailed examination of such
Account & records.
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7. (a) According to the books and records as produced

and examined by us in accordance with generally
accepted auditing practices in India and also
based on Management representations,
undisputed statutory dues in respect of Provident
Fund, Employee’s State Insurance dues, Investor
Education and Protection Fund, Income Tax,
Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues have generally been regularly deposited by

. the Company during the year with the appropriate

(b)

authorities in India and there were no arrear
outstanding in respect of above for a period of
more than six month as on 31.03.2016.
According to the records of the Company
examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, there are no dues of
sales tax, income tax, customs duty, service
tax, excise duty and cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute other than
the following amounting to ¥1.93 crores. The
details are as under:-

NATURE OF FORUM WHERE YEAR |DISPUTED
DUES/NAME OF | DISPUTE IS PENDING AMOUNT
STATUTES ®)
EXCISE DUTY
CENTRAL EXCISE | PUNJAB AND HARYANA | 1989-90 6,47,885
ACT 1944 HIGH COURT
CENTRAL EXCISE | COMMISSIONER 2007-08 2,56,533
ACT 1944 (APPEALS),
CHANDIGARH
CENTRAL EXCISE | COMMISSIONER 2007-08t0 | 2,59,085
ACT 1944 (APPEALS), 2008-09
CHANDIGARH
CENTRAL EXCISE | COMMISSIONER 2004-05t0 | 89,56,212
ACT 1944 (APPEALS), 2006-07
CHANDIGARH
CENTRAL EXCISE | CESTAT, NEW DELHI 2004-05 78,579
ACT 1944 )
CENTRAL EXCISE | CESTAT, NEW DELHI 2002-03to | 15,87,580
ACT 1944 2004-05
GENTRAL EXCISE | CESTAT, NEW DELH! 2005-06 to | 11,30,998
ACT 1944 2006-07
CENTRAL EXCISE | COMMISSIONER 2007-08 2,64,934
ACT 1944 (APPEALS),
CHANDIGARH
CENTRAL EXCISE | COMMISSIONER 2007-08tc | 3,11,332
ACT 1944 (APPEALS), 2008-09
CHANDIGARH
CENTRAL EXCISE | CESTAT, NEW DELHI 2004-05to | 3,55,235
ACT 1944 2005-06

CENTRAL EXCISE | CESTAT, NEW DELHI 200809 | 1,10,550
ACT 1944
CENTRAL EXCISE | CESTAT, NEW DELHI | 2003-04 to | 20,78,246
ACT 1944 2007-08
CENTRAL EXCISE | GCOMMISSIONER 2004-05 | 5,16,272
ACT 1944 (APPEALS),
CHANDIGARH
CUSTOMS DUTY
CUSTOMS CESTAT, AHMEDABAD | 2004-05 | 25,35450
ACT 1962
INCOME TAX
INCOME TAX INCOME TAX AIY 2005-06] 1,64,482
ACT 1961 APPELLATE TRIBUNAL, | & 2006-07
CHANDIGARH

8. There are dues payable to financial institutions but not
todebenture holders. During the yearended 31t March
2016, the Company has defaulted on timely payment
of principal and payment of interest on term loans and
cash credits. The lender wise delay with respect to

interest and principal is as under:

Tinlacs

Particulars Default Default Defauit for

within between more than

30 days | 30 to 90 days 90 days
State bank of India:
Term Loan
- Principal - 348.51 156.66
- Interest 2.30 402.01 70.41
Cash Credit
-Interest 209.06 163.82 -
Punjab National Bank:
Term Loan
-Principal - 228.27 29.00
-Interest - 227.83 22.19
Cash Credit
-interest 122.11 68.96 -
State Bank of Patiala:
Term Loan
-Principal - 161.12 -
-Interest 8.38 129.10 -
Cash Credit
-Interest 131.42 44.84 -
Canara Bank:
Term Loan
-Principal - 108.26 -
-Interest 12.33 87.01 2.69
Cash Credit
-Interest 39.39 69.40 -
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Apart from above, as on the date of balance sheet, the
Company had not paid the following amounts having
become due as on 31% March, 2016.

Zinlacs

Name of Bank Principal | Interest Interest

Installment { on Term on Cash

Loan Credit limit

State Bank of India 119.09 41.50 36.28
Punjab National Bank 59.20 22.37 20.82
State Bank of Patiala 33.08 12.16 14.68
Canara Bank 27.02 8.92 6.85

9. The Company did not raise money by way of initial
public ‘offer or further public offer (including debt

instruments and term loans) during the year.

As per the information and explanation given to
us and on the basis of examination of records, no
material fraud on or by the Company was noticed
during the course of our audit.

The Company has paid or provided managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approval mandated by the provisions of section 197
read with schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, considering the nature of activities
carried on by the Company during the year, the
provisions of any special/statute applicable to Nidhi
Company are not applicable to it.

All transactions with related parties are in accordance
with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 and details have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

The Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under
review.

The Company has not entered into any non cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with
him during the year under review.

The Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India, 1934.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

For Aaryaa & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0015935N

Krishan Joshi
Partner
M. No.094478

Place: Chandigarh
Dated: 28" May, 2016

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORTONTHE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
UNDER CLAUSE (l) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION
143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

1. Inconjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of Modern Steels Limited (“the Company”) as of and
for the year ended 31" March, 2016, we have audited

the internal financial controls over financial reporting
(IFCoFR) of the company of as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of the company’s
business, including adherence to company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s IFCoFR based on our audit
We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and deemed
to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the ICAIl. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of

22




~ ANNUAL REPORT  [ZWINTS)

IFCoFR included obtaining an understanding of
IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

6. A Company's IFCoFR is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. A
Company’s IFCoFR includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2)provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR,
including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the

risk that IFCoFR may become inadequate because

of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at 31t March 2016, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Aaryaa & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0015935N

Krishan Joshi
Place: Chandigarh Partner
Dated: 28" May, 2016 M. No.094478
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315" MARCH 2016

Particulars Notes 31t March, 2016 31t March, 2015
Tin Lacs Tin Lacs

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's Funds

Share Capital 1 14,40 14,40

Reserves and Surplus [\ (24,24) 9,33

Money Received against Share Warrants \ - (9,84) - 23,73
Non-current Liabilities

Long Term Borrowings Vi 70,59 83,10

Other Long Term Liabilities Vil 4 4

Long-Term provisions VIH 1,60 72,23 1,59 84,73
Current Liabilities

Short Term Borrowings IX 98,04 77,48

Trade payables X 30,58 49,03

Other Current Liabilities Xl 29,84 24,80

Short-Term provisions Xl 71 1,59,17 71 1,52,02

Total 2,21,56 2,60,48
ASSETS
Non-Currents assets
Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets Xl 72,88 77,63

Intangible Assets Xl 2 3

Non-current investments XV 4,85 4,85

Deffered Tax Assets (net) XV - 16,33

Long Term Loans and advances Xvi 8,74 86,49 7,49 1,06,33
Current Assets

Inventories XVH 59,56 60,83

Trade Receivables XVHI 65,53 80,56

Cash and Bank Balance XX 4,59 5,79

Short Term Loans and Advances XX 4,54 5,13

Other Current Assets XXI 85 1,35,07 1,84 1,54,15

Total 2,21,56 2,60,48

Significant Accounting Policies

The Notes | to XXXXIl form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For AARYAA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0015935N

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

KRISHAN KUMAR GOYAL
Director
(DIN: 00482035)

MUKESH SEHGAL
General Manager
(Corporate Finance)

KRISHAN JOSHI ASHISH SHARMA D.S. GILL
Partner General Manager (Secretarial) Director
M.No 094478 & Company Secretary (DIN: 00211236)

Place: Chandigarh
Dated: 28" May, 2016
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Particulars Notes 31t March, 2016 31t March, 2015
Tin Lacs Tin Lacs
INCOME
Revenue from Operations XX 3,02,70 3,56,60
Less Excise Duty 33,45 39,04
2,69,25 3,17,56
Other Income XXHI 2,06 6,91
Total Revenue 2,71,31 3,24,47
EXPENSES
Cost of material consumed XXIv 1,38,32 2,02,00
Changes in inventories of finished goods, XXV (2,61) (6,73)
work-in-progress and Stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense XXVi 17,67 15,65
Finance Cost XXV 27,13 25,03
Depreciation and Amortisation expenses Xii 5,39 5,83
Other Expenses XXVili 1,02,59 1,01,07
Prior Period Items XXIX 6 2
Total Expenses 2,88,55 3,42,87
Profit / {Loss) before Tax (17,24) (18,40)
Tax Expense:

- Deferred Tax (16,33) 6,24
Profit / {Loss) for the year (33,57) (12,16)
Earning/(Loss) per equity share of face value of ¥ 10 each XXXI

- Basic (in ) . {24.39) (8.84)

- Diluted (in %) - -

Significant Accounting Policies I

Notes | to XXXXII form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For AARYAA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0015935N

MUKESH SEHGAL
General Manager
(Corporate Finance)

KRISHAN JOSHi ASHISH SHARMA D.S. GILL
Partner General Manager (Secretarial) Director
M.No 094478 & Company Secretary (DIN: 00211236)

Place: Chandigarh
Dated: 28" May, 2016

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

KRISHAN KUMAR GOYAL
Director
(DIN: 00482035)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2016

Particulars 31t March, 2016 31% March, 2015
X in Lacs Zin Lacs
. Cash Fiow from Operating Activities :
Net Profit/(Loss) after tax (33,57) (12,18)
Adjusted for :
i. Depreciation 5,39 5,83
ii. Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets - -
iii. Income from sale of investment - (3,48)
iv. Deferred Tax Liability/Asset 16,33 (6,23)
v. Finance Cost 27,13 25,04
vi. Interest Income (1,90) 46,95 _(3,14) 18,02
Operating profit before working Capital Changes 13,38 5,86
Adjusted for :
i. Inventories 1,27 (5,96)
ii. Trade & Other receivables 15,58 (14,79)
iii. Trade Payable & Other Liabilities {13,41) 3,44 24,48 3.73
Cash Generated from Operations 16,82 9,59
i. Taxes Paid (22) (34)
Net Cash outflow from Operating Activities (A) 16,60 9,25
- Cash Flow from Investing Activities
i. Purchase of Fixed Assets (63) (11,00)
ii. Adjustment through retained earnings as per new Companies Act - 95
iii. Sale/Adjustments of Fixed Assets - 1
iv. Sale of Investment - 5,63
v. Interest Income 1,90 3,14
vi. Increase(Decrease) in Bank balances not considered as cash (24) (19)
and cash equivalents
Net Cash used In Investing Activities (B) 1,03 ,03 1,46
. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
i. Increase in Share Capital - 1,16
ii. Increase in Share Premium - 10,53
iii. Increase/(Decrease) in Share Warrants - (10,67)
iv. Netincrease(Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings (12,51) 3,16
v. Net Increase(Decrease) in Liabilities/Provisions 1 (8)
vi. Net Increase (Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings 20,56 10,36
vii Finance Cost (27,13) (25,04)
Net Cash from Financing Activities (C) (19,07) (10,58)
Net increase/decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (1,44) 2,79)
Cash & Cash Equivalents as on 1% April 2015 2,53 5,32
Cash & Cash Equivalents as on 31t March 2016 1,09 2,53
Reconciliation of Cash and Bank balances with Balance Sheet
Cash and Bank balances as per Balance Sheet 4,59 5,79
Less Bank balances not considered as Cash and Cash equivalents 3,50 3,26
Cash & Cash equivalents as on 31 March 2016 109 2,53

As per our report of even date attached

For AARYAA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0015935N

KRISHAN JOSHI
Partner
M.No 094478

Place: Chandigarh
Dated: 28" May, 2016

MUKESH SEHGAL
General Manager
(Corporate Finance)

ASHISH SHARMA
General Manager (Secretarial)
& Company Secretary

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

KRISHAN KUMAR GOYAL
Director
(DIN: 00482035)

D.S.GILL
Director
(DIN: 00211236)

26




ANNUAL REPOR 42ND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315TMARCH, 2016

NOTE :! CORPORATE INFORMATION
Modern Steels Limited (the Company) is a pubtic listed Company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 on 19" November, 1973. The Company is engaged in manufacturing of Steel Rolled products.

NOTE : [l SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on a going concern basis, on
the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian
GAAP). Indian GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards as specified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 (as amended) and other accounting
pronouncements of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Revised Schedule 1lf to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services
and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current/ non-current classification
of its assets and liabilities.

2.2 Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles, require
estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as of the date of the
financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference
between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the year in which the results materialize.

2.3 Fixed Assets and Depreciation
All tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost comprises the purchase price and
other attributable cost including financing & other cost of borrowed funds attributable to construction or acquisition of
tangible fixed assets for the year up to the date when the assets are first put to use. Modvat credit, service tax credit
and VAT credit on tangible fixed assets has been reduced from the cost. Expenditure during construction is being
capitalized.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on straight-line method according to the Schedule il of the
Companies Act, 2013.
2.4 Intangibles and Amortization
Intangible assets are recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to that assets will flow
to the enterprise and cost of the asset can be measured reliably in accordance with Accounting Standard-26 on
“Intangibles Assets” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.
Intangibles assets are amortized on stralght line basis over their useful lives, which range from 1-5 years, determmed
on the basis of expected future economic benefits. The amortization period and method would be reviewed at the end
of each financial year.
2.5 Inventories
The cost in respect of various items of inventory is computed as under:-
i.) In case of Raw-material on FIFO Basis (net of Modvat, Service Tax & VAT).
ii.) In case of Work in Progress - Rolling Mill Raw Material are valued at monthly average cost basis. Cost for
this purpose includes direct cost and all appropriate allocable overheads.
iii.}) In case of Finished Goods at cost plus all appropriate allocable overheads and Excise Duty thereon. Cost
for this purpose includes direct cost on monthly average cost basis, all appropriate allocable overheads and
Excise Duty thereon.
Fresh Stock of Stores, spares & Fuel are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower and cost is
computed on FIFO Basis (net of MODVAT, Service tax, VAT). Stocks in working condition are valued at depreciated
value or realizable value whichever is less. Disposable and Used Stocks is valued at net realizable value.
2.6 Foreign Exchange Transaction
The transactions in Foreign exchange are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transactions. The current assets and current liabilities are converted at the exchange rate prevailing at the last
working day of the accounting year. The resultant gains/losses are recognized in the profit & loss account relating
to current assets & current liabilities. Exchange differences on foreign currency transactions relating to fixed assets
acquired from a country outside India have been adjusted to revenue.

Forward Exchange contracts not intended for trading or speculation purpose

In case of forward exchange contract, the premium or discount arising at the inception of such contract is amortized
as income or expense over the life of contract as well as exchange difference on such contract i.e. difference between
the exchange rate at the reporting/ settlement date and the exchange rate on the date of inception/ the last reporting
date, is recognized as income/ expense for the year.

2.7 Investments
Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which

such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as Non Current
investments.
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2.8

2.9

210

21

2,12

2.13

214

215

2.16

Currents investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined and longterm
Investments are carried at cost. However, provision for dilution in value is made to recognize the decline other than
temporary in the valye of investments.

Employees Benefits

. Provident Fund

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund whether in pursuance of law or
gf the year.otherwise is accounted on accrual basis and charged to Statement of Profit & Loss

. ratuity
The retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity Scheme have been provided for the year ended as on 31 March
20186. In accordance with Accounting Standard 15 (revised 2005), actuarial valuation was done in respect of
the aforesaid defined “benefit’ scheme.

Borrowing Costs

Other borrowing Costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues / Incomes and Cost /Expenditures are being generally accounted on accrual basis, as they are earned or

incurred. Expenditures have been disclosed net of excise duty, service tax and VAT which are Modvatable.

« Sales
Sales comprise of value of sales of products (net of returns) excluding VAT and Trade Discounts but including
excise duty. Sales are recognized when the title of the goods is passed to the customers. Excise duty is reduced
from gross sales to arrive at net sales.

* Interest
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis (accrual basis) taking into account the amount outstanding
and the rate applicable.

* Dividend
Dividend Income is accounted for in the year in which the right to receive the same is established.

Taxes on Income

accordance with the Income Tax Act 1961 - Deferred Tax resulting from timing difference between Book Profits and Tax
Profits is accounted for at the applicable rate of tax to extent the timing differences are expected to crystallize, in case of
Deferred Tax Liabilities with reasonable certainty and in case of Deferred Tax Assets with virtual certainty that there would
be adequate future taxable income against which Deferred Tax Assets can be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes down the

may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax assets can be realized. Any
such right-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be,
that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

that the Company will Pay normal income tax during specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes
i be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (ICAl), the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement
of profit and loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date
and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence
to the effect that Company will pay normal income-tax during the specified period.
Impairment of Assets
As at 31 March, 2016 the Company has reviewed the future earning of its cash generating unit in accordance with
the "Accounting Standards 28 Impairment of Assets” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India. As
per the Company’s said review the carrying amount of the assets does not exceed the future recoverable amount
consequently, no adjustment is considered necessary by the management.
Provisions for Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present
obligation as a resuit of past event and it is probable that there will be outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are
disclosed by way of notes, Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statement.
Earning Per Share :
Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of €equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earning per share is computed
by taking into the account the aggregate of the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period and weighted average number of equity shares which would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential
equity shares into equity shares.
Cash Flow Statement
The cash flow statement has been in accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS)-3 on “Cash Flow Statements”
issued by the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2008. ) )
Accounting policies not specifically referred to above are consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Practices
(GAAP).
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NOTE : lll
SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Number ¥in Lacs Number Tin Lacs
Authorised
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 2,49,00,000 24,90 2,49,00,000 24,90
9.5% Redeemable Cumulative 10,000 10 10,000 10
' 25,00 25,00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up
Equity Shares of X 10/- each 1,37,62,359 13,76 1,37,62,359 13,76
A 13,76 A 13,76
Forfeited Shares (Amount paid up) - -
Forfeited Warrants (Amount paid up) 64 64
B 64 B 64
(A+B) 14,40 (A+B) 14,40

a) Reconciliation of number and amount of equity shares
No. of Shares ¥ in Lacs No. of Shares ¥ in Lacs

Number and amount of equity shares at the 1,37,62,359 13,76 1,25,92,359 12,59
beginning
Add: Number and amount of equity shares - - 11,70,000 1,17

Issued during the year
Number and amount of equity shares at the end 1,37,62,359 13,76 1,37,62,359 13,76

b) Rights, Preferences, restrictions attached to equity shareholders:-

The Company has two classes of shares referred to as Equity Shares having par value of T10/- each
and 9.5% Redeemable cumulative Preference Shares of ¥100/- each.

The Company has issued equity shares only. Hence rights / preferences applicable for Redeemable
cumulative Preference capital are not disclosed separately.

Each Equity Shareholder is entitle to one vote per share.

The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. In respect to Equity Shares, the dividend
if any, proposed by the Board of Directors will be subject to approval of shareholders in Annual General
Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the shareholders.

¢) Share held by holding Company or its ultimate holding Company or subsidiary or associates of the
holding Company or the ultimate holding in aggregate Nil (Nil)

d) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without being
received in-cashNil (Nil), bonus shares and shares back for the period of five years immediately
preceding the reporting date Nil (Nil).
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e) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares as at balance sheet date

As at As at

31¢t March, 2016 31° March, 2015

Name of Equity Shareholders No. of % No. of %

Shares Shares

1 Mr. Krishan Kumar Goyal 24,96,179 18.14 24,96,179 18.14
2 Mrs. Alka Goyal 14,88,840 10.82 14,88,840 10.82
3 Mr. Amarjit Goyal 11,89,250 8.64 11,89,250 8.64
4 M/s. Nabha Commerce Pvt. Ltd. 8,37,750 6.09 8,37,750 6.09
5 Mr. Aditya Goyal 7,95,590 5.78 7,95,590 5.78
Total 68,07,609 49.47 68,07,609 49.47

f) Forfeiture of share warrants

Inthe F.Y. 2011-12, the amount paid up on 7,71,641 warranis @ 8.25/- (Per warrant) of T 63.66 lacs stands
forfeited as not converted.

NOTE : IV
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
As at As at
Particulars 31t March, 2016 31% March, 2015
% in Lacs TinLacs

Securities Premium Account 13,42 2,89

Add: Receipts on the issue of Share Capital - 13,42 10,53 13,42
General Reserve 24,97 24,97

(Balance at the beginning and at the end of year)

Surplus/(Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss
- Balance at the beginning of year {29,06) (17,54)

Less: Opening adjustments as per new Companies Act, 64
2013 (see note below)
Add/Less:Transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss (33,57) (12,16)
- Balance at the end of year (62,63) (29,06)
Total . 24,24 9,33

Note: Pursuant to Companies Act, 2013, Nil (¥64 lacs) (net of deferred tax) has been adjusted with
opening balance of retained earnings in respect of fixed assets where life has expired as per
schedule as on 31%t March, 2014.

NOTE:V
MONEY RECEIVED AGAINST SHARE WARRANTS

As at As at
Particulars 31t March, 2016 318 March, 2015
Zin Lacs in Lacs
Opening Balance - : 10,67
Gross Amount received - 1,03
(Less) Utilised during the year - (11,70)

Total - -

Nil (Nil) equity warrants allotted on preferential basis, carry an option to the holder of such warrants to
subscribe to one equity share of ¥ 10/- at premium of T 90/- per share for every warrant held, within 18 months
from date of allotment i.e. 3 October, 2013
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NOTE : VI
LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Particulars NON CURRENT CURRENT MATURITIES
31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Tin Lacs T in Lacs
SECURED BORROWINGS
(a) Term Loan - i 9,82 12,16 3,28 2,93
Term Loan - ii 18,74 21,80 3,68 3,19
(b) Working Capital Term Loans 28,21 33,86 7,70 5,64
(c) Funded Interest Term Loans 7,21 8,66 2,04 144
Total (A) 63,98 76,48 16,70 13,20
UNSECURED BORROWINGS
From Related Parties 3,11 517 - -
From Others 3,50 1,45 - -
Total (B) 6,61 6,62 - -
Amount disclosed under "Other - - (16,70) (13,20)
Current Liabilities” (Refer Note XI)
Total (A+B) 70,59 83,10 - -

a)

b)

Details of Securities:-

Term loans from State Bank of India, Punjab National Bank, State Bank of Patiala and Canara Bank
are secured by equitable mortgage of Land and Building of the Company’s properties situated at village
Ajnali, Ambey Majra and Kukkar Majra & by hypothecation of all the movable properties forming part of
the entire fixed assets of the Company on pari passu basis. The term loans from SBI, PNB, SBOP &
Canara Bank are also secured by way of second charge on all the current assets of the Company.

Working Capital Term Loans and/or Funded Interest Term Loans from State Bank of India, Punjab National
Bank, Canara Bank and State Bank of Patiala are secured by equitable mortgage of Land and Building of
the Company’s properties situated at Village Ajnali, Ambey Majra and Kukkar Majra & by hypothecation
of all the movable properties forming part of the fixed assets of the Company on pari passu basis. The
Working Capital Term Loan and/or Funded Interest Term Loan from State Bank of India, Punjab National
Bank, Canara Bank and State Bank of Patiala are also secured by way of second charge on all the current
assets of the Company.

Collateral Security

Equitable mortgage of i) a vacant industrial plot on Truck Stand Road, Mandi Gobindgarh owned by Chandigarh
Finance Pvt. Ltd. ii) residential property in the name of a Director at Sarvapriya Vihar, New Delhi.
Pledge of promoters’ shareholding i.e. 65.53% of the paid up capital.

Guarantee by Directors & others:-

Aggregate amount of Secured Long Term Borrowings are guaranteed by Chairman, Managing Director and
Mr. Aditya Goyal are as follows:

TERMLOAN I : 13,11 lacs (X 15,09 lacs)
TERMLOAN Il : X 22,41 lacs (¥ 24,99 lacs)
WCTL 1 T 35,92 lacs (T 39,50 lacs)
FITL : 9,25 lacs (T 10,10 lacs)
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Pursuant to the rework proposal approved under the Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR) scheme by CDR Empowered
Group duly sanctioned by respective banks under the consortium, following interest rates and schedules of repayment
have been agreed with the Company.

Term Loans @ 16% pa. (included in long term borrowings and other current liabilities) (T in lacs)

TERM LOAN [

Name of Bank Amount Financial year 201516 2016-17  2017-18 201819 2019-20  2020-21 2021-22
outstanding p, o¢ instalment in a year 2 4 4 4 4 4 1

State Bank of India 8.21.49 Annual instalment amount 7245 14500 14500 1 4500 14500 14500 24.04

Punjab National Bank 3,14.17 Annual instalment amount 14.18 57.14 57.14 57.14 57.14 57.14 14.29

Canara Bank 1,74.88 Annual instalment amount 7.85 31.84 31.84 31.84 31.84 31.84 7.83

Term Loans @ 16% pa. (included in long term borrowings and other current liabilities) (T in lacs)

TERM LOAN If-

Name of Bank Amount Financial year 201516 201617 201718~ 201818 2019-20  2020-21 2021-22
outstanding N, of instalment in a year 1 4 4 4 4 4 4

State Bank of India 10,4141 Annual instalment amount 3517 14376 14376 14376 14376 14376 1,43.76

Punjab National Bank  5,79.99 Annual instalment amount 20.00 80.00 80.00 80.00 80.00 80.00 80.00

Canara Bank 2,18.47 Annual instalment amount - 31.24 31.24 31.24 31.24 31.24 31.24

State Bank of Patiala 4,01.61 Annual instalment amount - 57.36 57.36 57.36 57.36 57.36 57.36

Working Capital Term Loans (WCTL) (included in long term borrowings and other current liabilities) @ 10.50 % pa.

(R in lacs)
Name of Bank Amount Financial year 201516 2016-17  2017-18 2018-19 201920  2020-21 2021-22
outstanding p, of instalment in a year 2 4 4 4 4 4 4

State Bank of India 16,70.41 Annual instalment amount 12755 25714 25714 25714 25714 25714 25716
Punjab National Bank 8,82.72 Annual instalment amount 3557 14285 14285 1 4285 14285 14285 1 42.90
State Bank of Patiala 7,14.24 Annual instalment amount 2854 11428 1,1428 11428 11428  1,14.28 1,14.30
Canara Bank 3,14.30 Annual instalment amount 14.30 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00

Funded Interest Term Loans (FITL) (included in long term borrowings and other current liabilities) @ 10.50 % pa.

(X in lacs)
Name of Bank Amount Financial year 2015-16  2016-17  2017-18 201819 201920 202021 2021-22
outstanding Ny, of instalment in ayear 2 4 4 4 4 4 4
State Bank of India 4,86.48 Annual instalment amount 37.23 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 74.25
Punjab National Bank 2,33.98 Annual instalment amount 17.98 36.00 36.00 36.00 36.00 36.00 36.00
Canara Bank 96.45 Annual instalment amount 3.88 15.42 15.42 15.42 15.42 15.42 1547
State Bank of Patiala 1,07.81 Annual instalment amount - 18.00 18.00 18.00 18.00 18.00 17.81

Working Capital Term Loan (WCTL)

In the year 2012-13 the amount of Working Capital term Loan has been carved out of existing cash credit limits and same
is repayable in 28 quarterly structured instaliments commencing from 30" June, 2015.

Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL)

In the year 2012-13 the CDR Empowered Group has sanctioned the conversion of future intere$t into various .instrun.\e.qts
and repayments thereof keeping in view the present scale of operations and expected liquidity position in the initial
years of post implementation of the restructuring scheme. The repayment of 28 quarterly structured installments will be
commencing from 30" June, 2015.

Other Loans (Unsecured Borrowings)
Unsecured borrowings from related parties & others are due for payment from the financial year 2017-18 to 2018-19.
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NOTE: VIi
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES As at As at
Particulars 31t March, 2016 31st March, 2015
% in Lacs ginLacs
Securities Received 4 4
Total 4 4
NOTE: Vil As at As at
LONG TERM PROVISIONS 31t March, 2016 31t March, 2015
T in Lacs % in Lacs
Particulars
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 1,60 1,59
Total 1,60 1,59

The Company has adopted Accounting Standard AS 15 (Revised 2005) on employment benefit on 1t April 2007,
consequent to the clarification issued by ASB of the institute of chartered accountants of India for implementing
AS 15, the liability in respect of the same of benefit have been reworked as on 31% March, 2016, based on the
following assumptions. '

(Actuarial valuation has been done by Sh A.D. Gupta vide Actuarial Valuation Certificate dated 7" April, 20186)

As at As at
Particulars - 31t March, 2016 31t March, 2015
¥ in Lacs gin Lacs
a) Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate (per annum) 7.50% 8.00%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 3.50% 4.00%
Rate of return on plan assets - -
Expected average remaining working {Lives of employees (year)} 22.33 21.83
b) Table showing changes in present value of obligations:
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of the year 2,28 2,33

Acquisition adjustment - -
Interest Cost 18 20
Past Service Cost-vested - -
Current Service Cost ' 26 22
Curtailment Cost/(Credit) - -
Settlement Cost/(Credit) - -

Benefits Paid (42) (34)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations _ 1 (13)
Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year 2,31 - 2,28
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¢} Actuarial Gain/Loss Recognized:

Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year — Obligation 1 (13)
Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year — Plan Assets - -
Total (gain)/loss for the year 1 (13)
Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year 1 (13)
Unrecognized actuarial (gains)/losses at the end of year - -
d) The amounts to be recognized in Balance Sheet and
Statements of Profit & Loss:
Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year 2,31 2,28
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year - -
Funded Status (2,31) (2,28)
Unrecognized Actuarial (gains)/losses - -
Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet (2,31) (2,28)
e) Expenses recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss:
Current Service Cost 26 22
Past Service Cost ~vested - -
Interest Cost 18 20
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Curtailment Cost/(Credit) - -
Settlement Cost/(Credit) _ - -
Net actuarial (gain)/Loss recognized in the year 1 (13)
Expenses Recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss 45 29
f} Bifurcation of PBO at the end of year
Current Liability (Amount due within one year) 7 69
Non -Current Liability (Amount due over one year) 1,60 1,59
Total PBO at the end of year 2,31 2,28
NOTE: IX
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS As at As at
31t March, 2016 31t March, 2015
Particulars % in Lacs ?in Lacs
Secured borrowings
Loans repayable on demand:
- From Banks 98,04 77,48

Total

98,04

77,48

34




42\D

Detail of Securities

a) Working Capital Borrowings such as Cash credit from State Bank of India, Punjab National Bank, Canara

Bank and State Bank of Patiala is secured by hypothecation on entire curr
passu basis and second charge on Fixed Assets of the Company.

ent assets

b) Collateral Security

Equitable mortgage of i) a vacant industrial plot on Truck Stand Road, Mandi
Chandigarh Finance Pvt. Ltd. ii) residential property in the name of a Director at Sarv

¢) Guarantee by Directors & Others:-

Aggregate amount of Secured Short Term Borrowin
Mr. Aditya Goyal are as follows:

Cash Credit 98,04 Lacs (77,48 Lacs)
Letter of Credit issued by banks 20,79 Lacs (42,81 Lacs)

Cash Credit loan account is overdue as detailed below :-

gs guaranteed by Chairman, Managing Director &

of the Company on pari

Gobindgarh owned by
apriya Vihar, New Delhi.

% in Lacs
Name of Bank CC Limit Outstanding as on Overdue as on
31t March, 2016 31t March, 2016
State Bank of India 33,00 49,76 33,97
Punjab National Bank 18,25 27,32 18,05
NOTE: X
TRADE PAYABLES As at As at
31%t March, 2016 31t March, 2015
Particulars % in Lacs % in Lacs
- Dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 89 1,30
- Dues to Others 29,69 47,73
Total 30,58 49,03

According to communication received from su
applicability of the Act to them by the Compan

Section 22 of the Micro, Small and medium Enterprises Development Act (MSMED).

Principal amount remaining unpaid under MSMED Act, 2006 89

Total 89

ppliers and as certified by the management regarding the
Y, dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enter

prises pursuant to

1,30
1,30
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NOTE: Xi
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES As at As at
Particulars 31t March, 2016 31t March, 2015
N . T in Lacs %in Lacs
Current maturities of Long Term Bor.rowmgs 16,70 13,20
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 3,62 1,77
Other Payables
Advances from Customer 16 12
Expenses payables 4,93 5,83
Employee Related Payables 1,35 1,18
Statutory dues payables 3,08 2,70
Total 29,84 24,80
NOTE: Xl
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS As at As at
Particulars 31° March, 2016 31 March, 2015
% in Lacs Tin Lacs
Provision for Employee benefits
sratuity (Refer Note VHI) 71 69
Others
Provision for Wealth Tax - 2
Total 71 71
NOTE Xl
FIXED ASSETS % in Lacs
Fixed Assets GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
AsAt  Addi- Sales/ AsAt UpTo During Adjustment Sold/ UpTo AsAt As At
13t tions Adjust- 31st 1t the to Opening  Adjust- 31 31 31
April, ments March, April, Period Reserves ments March, March, March,
2015 2016 2015 (Refer note 2016 2016 2015
below)
TANGIBLE ASSETS
Land 25 - - 25 - - - - - 25 25
Buildings 15,09 - - 1509 451 41 - - 492 10,47 10,58
Plant & Machinery 1,12,82 57 - 113,39 47,07 4,71 - - 5178 6161 6575
Office Equipment 1,33 4 - 1,37 1,04 10 - - 1,14 23 29
Furniture 1,18 - - 1,18 89 8 - - 97 21 29
Vehicles 2,21 1 - 222 1,74 7 - - 1,81 41 47
TANGIBLE ASSETS TOTAL  1,32,88 62 - 1,33,50 5525 5,37 - - 6062 72,88 7763
Previous Year 1,01,72 3125 9 13288 5053 576 96 8 5525 77,63 -
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer Software 1,17 1 - 1,18 1,14 2 - - 1,16 2 3
INTANGIBLE ASSETS TOTAL 1,17 - 118 1,14 2 - - 1,16 2 3
Previous Year 1,14 3 - 1,17 1,07 7 - - 1,14 3 -
Total 1,34,05 63 - 1,3468 55,30 5,39 - - 61,78 7290 7766
Previous Year 1,02,86 31,28 9 13405 5161 5,83 96 8 5630 77,66 -
Capital Work-in-Progress - - - - - - - - - - -
Previous Year ' 2122 962 30,84 - - - - - - - .

Pursuant to Companies Act, 2013 being effective from 1=t A

useful life specified in Part C of Schedule It
March 2015) is lower by ZNil (
provision provided in note vii(b) of schedule 1l assets whose useful life i

% 51 lacs). Consequently, loss for the yeal

out of retained earning as on that date.

pril, 2014, the Company has revised de
of the Act. As a result of thi

preciation rates on its fixed assets as per the
s change, the depreciation charge for the year ended 31% March, 2016 (31
rended 31 March, 2015 is lower to that extent. Further based on transitional
s Nil as on 31 March, 2014 an amount of ¥ Nil (% 95 lacs) has been restated
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NOTE: XIV
NON - CURRENT INVESTMENTS . © As at As at
Particulars 31t March, 2016 31 March, 2015
T inLacs % in Lacs
A) TRADE INVESTMENT (at cost, unquoted)
investment in Equity instruments:
In Associate:
16,24,000 (16,24,000) equity shares of ¥10 each fully paid 4,82 4,82
up in Modern Automotives Ltd. out of which 8,00,000 equity
shares issued at premium @ T 40 per share.
(A) 4,82 4,82
B) OTHER INVESTMENT (at cost, unquoted)
Investment in Equity instruments:
In Others:
28,125 (28,125) No. of Equity Shares of 210 each fully paid 3 3
up in Nimbua Green Field (Punjab) Ltd.
(B) 3 3
Aggregate cost of Unquoted Investment (A+B) 4,85 4,85

- Note: During the year under review, the Company transferred Nil (21.76 lacs) shares of Modern Automotives Limited
and earned net gain of Nil (¥ 3.48 Crores).

NOTE: XV

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY/ASSET As at As at

Particulars 31 March, 2016 31t March, 2015

g in Lacs T in Lacs

Deferred Tax Liability

(Impact of difference between income tax depreciation and

depreciation / amortisation charged for financial reporting period)

Opening Balance 9,71 9,40

Additions (see note) - 31

Less: Adjustments during the year 9,71 -
Total (A) - 9,71

Deferred Tax Asset -

Disallowance u/s 40A(7) on account of provision of gratuity 74 74

On account of accumulated losses as per Income Tax Act 21,81 21,81

Disallowance u/s 43B on account of FITL interest : 3,28 3,28

Disallowance u/s 43B on account of Bonus 21 21
Total 26,04 26,04

Less: Adjustment during the year 26,04 -
Total (B) - 26,04
Net (B-A) - 16,33

Note: 1) Since there is no certain visibility about earning of sufficient future taxable income the Company has written
down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset as on 37*March, 2015 ¥ 16,33 Lacs. As a result the net loss after tax has
increased by such amount. Accordingly, deferred tax asset for the year ended 31%March, 2016 has not been accounted for.
Note: 2) Pursuant to Companies Act, 2013 being effective from 1st April, 2014, based on transitional provision pro-
vided in note VIi(b) of schedule Il assets whose useful life is ¥ Nil as on 31 March, 2014. An amount of Nil 95
Lacs) has been restated out of retained earning as on that date and deferred tax liability account has been adjusted
accordingly by Nil (% 31 Lacs).
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NOTE: XvI
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES As at As at
Particulars 31st N[arch, 2016 31 March, 2015
gin Lacs gin Lacs
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Capital Advances ' - 34
Security Deposits 6,33 4,74
Loans & Advances to Related Parties
Modern Automotives Ltd. 1,86 1,86
Other Loans & Advances
Amount paid (under protest) on account of Excise, Power, 55 55
ESi etc.
Total 8,74 ' 7,49
NOTE: XVII |
INVENTORIES As at As at
L . 31t March, 2016 315 March, 2015
Particulars T in Lacs % in Lacs
Inventories
a) Raw Materials (including-in-transit ¥86.92 lacs 17,61 20,92
Previous Year ¥ 1,49.29 lacs)
b) Work in Progress 8,39 7,16
¢) Finished Goods 19,94 18,56
d) Stores, Spares & Fuel (includes disposable stores) 13,62 14,19
Total 59,56 60,83

Method of Valuation:
1 The cost in respect of various items of inventory is computed as under-
a. In case of Raw material on FIFO Basis (net of MODVAT, Service Tax & VAT).

b. In Case of Work in Progress- Rolling Raw Material are valued at monthly average cost basis. Cost for this
purpose includes direct cost and all appropriate allocable overheads. :

¢. In Case of Finished Goods at Cost plus all appropriate allocable overheads and Excise Duty thereon. Cost
for this purpose includes direct cost on monthly average cost basis, all appropriate allocable overheads and
Excise Duty thereon,

2 Fresh Stocks of Stores, spares & fuel are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower and cost
is computed on FIFO Basis (net of MODVAT, Service tax, VAT). Stocks in working condition are valued at
depreciated value or realizable value whichever is less. Disposable and used stocks is valued at net realizable
value.
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NOTE: XVII
TRADE RECEIVABLES As at As at
. 31 March, 2016 31 March, 2015
Particulars T in Lacs % in Lacs
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Debts Outstanding for period exceeding six 2,33 1,41
months from due date of payment
Other Debts ' 63,20 79,15
Total 65,53 80,56
NOTE: XIX
CASH AND BANK BALANCES As at As at
Particul 31st March, 2016 31t March, 2015
articulars ?in Lacs ZinLacs
(A) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks
In Current Accounts 63 2,18
Cash in hand 46 35
(A) 1,09 2,53
(B) Other Bank Balances
In Fixed Deposits Accounts Inclusive of interest 3,50 3,26
accrued thereon
(B) 3,50 3,26
Total (A+B) 4,59 5,79
Fixed deposits including interest thereon is towards margin money given to the banks against margin of the Letter
of Credit.
NOTE: XX

SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Particulars

{Unsecured, Considered Good)

OTHERS

Advance Tax and TDS

Old Income Tax

Balance with Statutory Authorities

Advances to Suppliers

Advances to Employees

Prepaid Expenses

Other Recoverable ,
Total

As at
31%t March, 2016
% in Lacs

22
1,03
1,28
1,06

53
37
4,54

As at
31t March, 2015
T in Lacs

34
92
1,52
1,44

82

513
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NOTE: XXI
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2016 31st M.arch, 2015
ginLacs % in Lacs
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Insurance refund/claim receivable 1 1
Amount receivable from PSPCL 73 1,73
Interest and other amount receivable " 10
Total 85 1,84
NOTE: XXli
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31%* March, 2016 31% March, 2015
T in Lacs %in Lacs
Sale of Products (Refer note No. XXXHI 3,01,45 3,55,49
Other Operating Revenue 1,25 1,11
Revenue from Operations (Gross) 3,02,70 3,56,60
NOTE: XXIII
OTHER INCOME "Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31st M_arch, 2016 31t M.arch, 2015
: g in Lacs %in Lacs
Interest Income 1,90 3,14
Profit on sale of fixed assets - 1
Gain on sale of investment - 3,48
Bad Debts recovered - 27
Profit on sale of DEPB licence 15 -
Other Non-Operating Incomes 1 1
Total 2,06 6,91

Note:- During the year the Company transferred Nil (21.76 Lacs) equity shares of Modern Automotives Limited

and earned net gain of Nil (¥ 348 lacs).

NOTE: XXIV
COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

Particulars

Scrap
Consumption of Additives
Total

Year Ended
31t March, 2016
Zin Lacs

1,15,04
23,28
1,38,32

Year Ended
31 March, 2015
Zin Lacs

1,75,14
26,86
2,02,00
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NOTE: XXV
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2016 31t March, 2015
in Lacs % in Lacs
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 18,56 12,14
-Work-in-progress 7,16 6,85
(A) 25,72 18,99
Closing Stock
Finished Goods 19,94 18,56
Work-in-progress 8,39 7,16
(B) 28,33 25,72
(A-B) (261 T (673)
NOTE: XXVI
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31t March, 2016 31t March, 2015
% in Lacs % in Lacs
Salary Wages and Bonus 14,63 12,94
Contributions to Provident and Other Fund 1,46 1,47
Gratuity 45 29
Staff & Workers Welfare expenses 1,13 95
Total 17,67 1565
NOTE: XXVII
FINANCE COST Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31St?Mi?1rE2,c§016 315‘;VIie:]rch,C§O15
Interest Expense
Banks
Term Loans 10,49 10,32
Cash Credit 9,28 8,01
Bank & Others (against LC) 5,08 3,76
- Others
Unsecured Loans 36 44
Other Borrowing Cost 1,92 1,91
Net Loss on foreign currency translation & transactions - 59
Total 27,13 2503
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NOTE: XXVIII
OTHER EXPENSES Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31t March, 2016 31 March, 2015
% inLacs % in Lacs
Consumption of Stores and Spares parts 23,25 21,41
Power and Fuel 52,97 56,84
Other Manufacturing Expenses 7,77 6,92
Conversion Charges 3,17 2,26
Increase/(Decrease) in Excise Duty of closing Stock of Finished Goods 18 59
Rent 15 16
Repairs and Maintenance -
- Building 8 10
- Machinery 49 44
- Others 16 11
Insurance 34 35
Rate & Taxes 8 8
Fees 12 11
Travelling and Conveyance 62 69
Forwarding Expenses 3,82 4,29
Discount, Rebate and allowances 7,52 4,56
Net Loss on foreign currency translation & Transactions 1 31
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,86 1,90
Cost of Trial Run transferred to Capital WIP - 5
Total 1,02,59 1,01,07
NOTE: XXIX
PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2016 31 M.arch, 2015
% in Lacs %inLacs
Previous Year Expenses 14 2
Less Previous Year Income 8 -
Total 6 2
NOTE: XXX
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS As at As at
Particulars 31t March, 2016 31t March, 2015
T inLacs ¥in Lacs
Contingent Liabilities:
a) Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debts 2,80.22 2,81.01
b} Other money for which Company is contingent liable 3,36.33 9,53.51
Commitments:
a) Estimated amount of contractors remaining to be executed on - -
capital accounts and not provided for.
b) Letter of credited against import of material 21.50 -
¢) Unhedged foreign currency exposure as at year end: X in Lacs)
Particulars Currency As at 31t March, 2016 As at 31t March, 2015
Foreign Vendors usD - $00.17
Foreign Vendor Indian Rupee - %10.82
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NOTE: XXXI
EARNINGS PER SHARE

As at

31t March, 2016

As at
31 March, 2015

Particulars
Profit / (Loss) after taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss (33,56.18) (12,15.43)
(X in lacs)
Equity shares outstanding 1,37,62,359 1,37,62,359
Basic.earnings/(loss) per share in rupees (face value ¥ 10/- each) (24.39) (8.84)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share in rupees (face value % 10/- each) - -
NOTE: XXXII
PAYMENT TO AUDITORS * As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2016 31 March, 2015
% in Lacs g in Lacs
Audit Fees 9.14 7.87
Tax Audit fees 0.29 0.17
*inclusive of service tax
NOTE: XXXl
Statement of Turnover and Closing Stock % in Lacs
Particulars Turnover Finished Goods Work in Process
Closing Stock Opening Stock Closing Stock Opening Stock
Concast Billets this year 69.44 - - - -
Previous year 2,01.27 - - - -
Rolled Product this year 2,51,53.49 16,42.34 16,43.36 - -
Previous year 3,06,47.92 16,43.36 12,13.65 - -
nduction Ingots this year 4,17.71 - - - -
Previous year 25,00.58 - - - -
Euto Components this year 44,08.78 3,51.30 2,12.92 - -
revious year 21,19.39 2,12.92 - - -
Others this year 96.1 - - - -
Previous year 79.62 - - - -
Current Year : 3,01,45.53 19,93.64 18,56.28 - -
Previous year 3,65,48.78 18,56.28 12,13.65 - -
Rolling Mills Material —

Billet - Current Year - - - 4,52.70 1,85.65
Billet — Previous Year - - - 1,85.65 4,60.38
Ingot — Current Year - - - 2,52.16 4,03.03
Ingot — Previous Year - - - 4,03.03 1,90.00
Round — Current Year - - - 1,34.36 1,27.56
Round — Previous Year - T - 1,27.56 35.07

Total — Current Year - - - 8,39.22 7,16.24
Total — Previous Year - - - 7,16.24 6,85.45
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MODERN STEELS LIMITED

NOTE: XXXIV

The Information required by paragraph 5 of general instructions for Preparation of the statement of
Profit and Loss as per Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013
a) Value of Imports (CIF Basis)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31t March, 2016 31% March, 2015
% in Lacs % in Lacs
1) Raw Material 48,40.87 99,43.01
2) Stores & Spares 1,21.63 3,65.83
b) Expenditure in Foreign Currency
Electrical Repairs 1.48 13.14
¢) Value of Raw Material Consumed
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2016 31t March, 2015
%age Value in Lacs %age Value in Lacs
Cost of Materials Consumed
imported 45.77 63,30 58.38 1,17,88
Indigenous 54.23 75,01 41.62 84,04
1,38,31 2,01,92
Store & Spares
Imported 19.01 4,42 20.16 4,32
Indigenous 80.99 18,83 79.84 17,11
23,25 21,43
d) Earning in Foreign Currency Nil 10

NOTE: XXXV
TREATMENT OF EXCISE DUTY

stock and opening stock amounting t0318.22 lacs (358.78 lacs) has been disclosed separately in the Other
Expenses forming part of statement of Profit and Loss.

NOTE: XXXVI
CAPITALIZATION OF EXPENDITURE

The following expenditures have been capitalized during the year:

31t March, 2016 315t March, 2015

¥ in Lacs T in Lacs

Salary and Wages - 5.00
Power and Fuel - 5.00
Finance Costs - 93.51
Trial Run Cost - 4.89
Total - 1,08.40
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NOTE: XXXVII
SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company is engaged in the business of Steel Manufacturing which in context of Accounting Standards — 17
“Segment Report” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is considered the only Business
Segment. So separate segment reporting is not necessary.

NOTE: XXXV

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Current Assets, Loan and Advances have value on realization in the
ordinary course of business at least equal to the amounts at which they are stated and provision for all known
liabilities have been made in accounts.

NOTE: XXXIX

The Company has applied for its debts under Corporate Debt Restructuring Mechanism during the financial
year 2012-13. The proposal to restructure all the debts from the lenders:

+ State Bank of India

* Punjab National Bank
+ State Bank of Patiala
« Canara Bank

CDR Empowered Group approved restructuring on 8" November, 2012 and CDR Cell issued Letter of Approval
(LOA) on dated 27" April, 2013. Master Restructuring Agreement incorporating the terms of LOA was signed
with the lenders on 25" July, 2013. The Company has created security in favour of the lenders.

NOTE: XXXX

In term of Letter of Approval (LOA) and Master Restructuring Arrangement (MRA), the Company’s debts have
been restructured with longer repayment schedule stretching upto FY 2022-23 and low rate of interest. A part
of the interest for the period from September 2012 to March 2014 has been funded by the lenders by way of
Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL). However, CDR lenders would have the right to recompense for their sacrifices,
at the time of Company’s exit from CDR, the sacrifice amount for which lenders have right to recompense
works out to ¥12.33 Crores during the tenure of CDR, of which the amount for the year ended 31t March 2016 is
¥ 1.63 Crores and the cumulative amount for the year upto 31% March 2016 is ¥ 7.62 Crores.

However no provision has been made in the books of accounts of the Company of the lenders right to
recompense for their sacrifices as the liability shall arise only at the time of exit from CDR.

NOTE: XXXXI

As per the Accounting Standard — 18 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India “Related Party
Disclosure”. In view of this the Company has given the following disclosures for the year.

The Company has identified the related parties having transactions during the year, as per detail given below.
No provision for doubtful debts is required to be made & no amount was written off during the year.

A) Related Party and their relationship

Key Management Personnel Enterprises over which KMP and relatives of such personnel
Mr. Amarjit Goyal are able to exercise significant influence

Mr. Krishan Kumar Goyal M/s Chandigarh Finance Pvt. Ltd., M/s. Modern Dairies Ltd.,
Mr. R.K. Sinha M/s. PHi Business Solutions Ltd., M/s Nabha Commerce Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Ashish Sharma M/s Indo Pacific Finlease Ltd., M/s Modern Automotives Ltd.
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B)

Particulars

Remuneration Including Perks

Interest on Unsecured Loan
Loan Taken
Loan Repaid

Loan Given

Loan Received Back

Interest Income

Share of Expenses Received
Share of Expenses Paid

Purchase of Raw Material & Stores

Job Work Paid

Job Work Received

Sales of Finished Products
Allotment of Warrants

Transactions with the related parties

Key Management
Personnel

1,20.80 (100.32)
22.32 (24.86)

- (17.14)

- (142.36)

-()

-()

-()

()
- (82.50)

Relatives of Key
Management
Personnel & their
Enterprises

- ()

00.16 (18.99)
2,98.00 (2,08.50)
3,32.53 (85.86)

- (1,01.00)

20.14 (1,01.00)
20.14(20.38)
34.58 (32.72)
28.39(-)

8,16.99 (6,80.15)
00.10 (38.68)
1,27.53 (1,17.14)
64,70.89 (37,46.44)
-(20.00)

(X in Lacs)

Associates

NOTE: XXXXII

Figures for the previous year have been regrouped / rearranged wherever considered necessary.

For AARYAA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 0015935N

KRISHAN JOSHI
Partner
M.No 094478

Place: Chandigarh
Dated: 28" May, 2016

MUKESH SEHGAL
General Manager

(Corporate Finance)

ASHISH SHARMA

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

KRISHAN KUMAR GOYAL

General Manager (Secretarial)

& Company Secretary

Director
(DIN: 00482035)

D.S. GILL
Director
(DIN: 00211236)
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o ﬂlh Modern Steels Limited

CORPORATE OFFICE : 98-99, SUB CITY CENTRE, SECTOR 34, CHANDIGARH - 160 022 (INDIA)
Tel : +91-172-2609001, 2609002, FAX : +91-172-2609000
E-mail : info@modernsteels.com, CIN : L27109PB1973PLC003358

Ref: MSL/SECT/BSE/
Date: 17" June, 2016

The Secretary

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001
Tel : 022 — 22721233

SUB: ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16
Dear Sir,

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we are enclosing herewith six copies of
Notice along with the Annual Report as sent to the shareholders for the year
2015-16.

Kindly acknowledge receipt of the same.
Thanking you

Yours truly,
for Modern Steels Limited

\

(Ash%g)l;%;::ma)
General Manager (Secretarial)
& Company Secretary

Regd. Office & Works : Post Box No. 12, G.T. Road, Mandi Gobindgarh - 147 301 (Punjab)



